
 
 
A meeting of the EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE will be held in THE 
CIVIC SUITE (LANCASTER/STIRLING ROOMS), PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
WEDNESDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER 2023 at 7:00 PM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

APOLOGIES  
 
 

1. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 
on 20th September 2023. 

 
Contact Officer: A Roberts - 388015 
 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary, other 
registerable and non-registerable interests in relation to any Agenda item. See 
Notes below. 

 
Contact Officer: Democratic Services - 388169 
 

3. WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT - QUARTER TWO 2023-24 (Pages 9 - 
36) 

 
To consider an update on HR matters impacting on the performance of the 
organisation. 

 
Contact Officer: N Bane - 388422 
 

4. WORKFORCE STRATEGY  
 

To receive an oral update on the Workforce Strategy from J Taylor, Chief 
Operating Officer, and N Harpham, HR Manager (Projects). 

 
Contact Officer: N Harpham - 388192 
 

5. HR POLICY UPDATE (Pages 37 - 82) 



 
To consider and comment on a report by the Strategic HR Manager on the 
outcome of reviews of the following HR policies: 
 

 IR35 Off Payroll working regulations; Status Determination Disagreement 
Process 

 Disciplinary Policy and Procedure 
 Sickness Absence and Attendance Policy 
 Volunteer Policy 
 Redundancy Policy 

 
Contact Officer: N Bane - 388422 
 

6. REPRESENTATIVES OF EMPLOYEES  
 

At the request of representatives of employees to consider a range of issues. 
 

  
 

14th day of November 2023 
 
Michelle Sacks 

 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid 
Service 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and Non-
Registerable Interests. 
 
Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and 
Non-Registerable Interests is available in the Council’s Constitution 
 
Filming, Photography and Recording (including Live Streaming) at Council 
Meetings 
 
This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
YouTube site. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are 
confidential or exempt items. If you make a representation to the meeting you will 
be deemed to have consented to being filmed. By entering the meeting you are 
also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If you have any queries 
regarding the streaming of Council meetings, please contact Democratic Services 
on 01480 388169.  
 
The District Council also permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs 
at its meetings that are open to the public. Arrangements for these activities 
should operate in accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council.  
 

Please contact Anthony Roberts ,Democratic Services, Tel: 01480 388169 / 
email Anthony.Roberts@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query 
on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the 

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf


meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the 
Committee/Panel. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards 
the Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except 
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 
 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest 

emergency exit.

http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE held in THE CIVIC 
SUITE (LANCASTER/STIRLING ROOMS), PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S 
STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on Wednesday, 20th September 2023 
 
PRESENT:  Councillor P A Jordan – Chair. 
 

Councillors A M Blackwell, S Cawley, C M Gleadow, 
M A Hassall and R J West. 
 

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on 
behalf of Councillors D N Keane and J E Kerr. 

 
12 MINUTES  

 
Subject to the deletion of the second sentence of the fourth paragraph of Minute 
No 6 to be replaced by “In response, Councillor Hassall commented that 
generally, in staff consultation pay fell number six in staff priorities but this varied 
by individual”, the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21st June 
2023 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

13 MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

14 WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT QUARTER ONE 2023-24  
 
The Committee received and noted a report on Human Resources matters 
impacting on the performance of the Council during the period 1st April to 30th 
June 2023. The report included the latest position and trends relating to 
employee numbers, salary costs and sickness absence. A copy of the report is 
appended in the Minute Book. 
 
The Committee was informed that the total number of employees at the end of 
the last quarter was higher than at the end of the previous quarter and that the 
total spend on pay costs for employees in 2023/24 was forecasted to be 
£980,000 lower than the year’s budget. Members received clarification of which 
year the ongoing pay negotiations would have an impact on. 
 
The report indicated that three employees had retired in the quarter. Members 
recognised the employee’s achievements and asked that their congratulations be 
passed on. In response to a question by Councillor  
 
Councillor West expressed the view that if renumeration levels were not 
comparable with those of other councils, the Council would not be able to recruit 
individuals to deliver the services it wants to provide. He further stated that the 
Council should be able to set Council Tax at a level that would provide the 
resources needed without being capped. Having referred to the justifications for 
decisions taken by the previous administration, he drew attention to the financial 
difficulties faced by residents and options for additional Government support. The 

Page 5 of 82

Agenda Item 1



Strategic HR Manager acknowledged that pay was challenging. Councillor 
Hassall reminder Members of decisions taken on financial matters since 2013 
and agreed with Councillor West on the subject of capping currently but pointed 
out that since 2013 the Council had not raised Council Tax to the level of the 
cap.  In response to a question by Councillor Gleadow the Strategic HR Manager 
pointed out that most councils had adopted the National Joint Committee terms 
of employment, but agreed to provide benchmarking information at a future 
meeting. 
 
Following questions by Councillor Blackwell, the Strategic HR Manager 
undertook to obtain data on staff turnover compared to other local councils and 
on sickness levels compared with other councils. Councillor Cawley 
congratulated Officers on reducing the level of sickness but asked if an 
investigation could be carried out into whether there were any links between 
performance measures a sickness. In addition, it was suggested these data 
should be augmented with details of reasons for leaving and analysis of sickness 
trends within the Council. 
 
The Committee then discussed the management of stress amongst the 
workforce. The measures in place included Mental Health First Aiders, and 
assistance programme and other support services. In response to a question by 
Councillor West, it was confirmed that some individuals who had left had been 
Mental Health First Aiders and that some, but not all of the First Aiders had been 
replaced. 
 
The Employee Representatives Group drew Members’ attention to the fact that 
the number of disciplinary hearings had taken place but that they had not been 
approached to provide support to the individuals involved. To enable them to 
provide the necessary support training would be required. The Strategic HR 
Manager confirmed that the currently was a higher than normal caseload but it 
did not represent a trend, which made it difficult to plan for. 
It was then 
 
RESOLVED 
 

a) that the contents of the report be noted, and 
 

b) that the Council place on record its recognition of and gratitude for the 
excellent contribution made by the employees who had recently retired from 
employment in the local government service and pass on its best wishes for 
a long and happy retirement. 

 
15 WORKFORCE PROFILE AND ACTION PLAN  

 
The Committee gave consideration to a report by the Strategic HR Manager (a 
copy of which is appended in the Minute Book), which contained the annual 
summary of the profile of the workforce according to their protected 
characteristics as required by the Equality Act 2010. Members discussed plans 
to provide mental health awareness training for managers and suggested that 
equal opportunities training should be mandatory. They also reviewed ways to 
improve declaration of protected characteristics and to reduce unconscious bias 
during recruitment. It was then recommended that all Equality Action Plan 
actions should be provided in a one-page document. Whereupon, it was 
 

Page 6 of 82



RESOLVED 
 

that the report be received and noted. 
 

16 NEW POLICY - FIXED TERM CONTRACTS  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Strategic HR Manager to which was 
attached a proposed new policy relating to Fixed Term contracts. A copy of the 
report is appended in the Minute Book. Members were informed that the Policy 
was required to ensure the Council complied with the Fixed Term Work 
Regulations 2002. Having expressed support for the Policy, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the Fixed Term Contract Policy appended to the report now submitted 

be endorsed. 
 

17 HR POLICY UPDATE  
 
By means of a report by the Strategic HR Manager (a copy of which is appended 
in the Minute Book) the Committee was acquainted with the outcome of reviews 
of the Job Evaluation Policy and the Working Time Regulations Guidelines. 
Subject to an amendment to paragraph 5.2 of the Job Evaluation Appeals 
Process so that an employee also could be represented by an external 
individual, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Job Evaluation Policy and the Working Time Regulations 
Guidelines appended in the report now submitted be endorsed. 

 
18 REPRESENTATIVES OF EMPLOYEES  

 
D Pope, on behalf of the Employee Representatives Group (ERG), drew 
Members’ attention to employees’ concerns surrounding the pay dispute. He 
referred to the survey of employees and the Union’s notice of industrial action. 
The ERG was endeavouring to allays these concerns. Reference also was made 
to the implications of the reasons for the dispute for employee retention. 
 
The Chair confirmed that the ERG’s comments would be noted. Councillor 
Hassall stated the HR had a significant amount of information available and any 
questions employees had should be addressed to HR. Councillor West then 
expressed his gratitude for the information provided to Members on this subject. 
 

 
Chair 

Page 7 of 82



 

Page 8 of 82



 
 
 

Workforce Report 
Quarter Two 2023-24 

 
Executive Summary 

 
 
This report looks at the workforce profile of Huntingdonshire District Council during 
the Second Quarter of the financial year, 01 July 2023 to 30 September 2023. 
  
The key findings from the workforce profile report are:   
 

 The permanent/fixed term employed workforce headcount is 629 and the full-
time equivalent (FTE) total is 571.58 as of 30 September 2023. This is higher 
than at the end of the previous Quarter where the headcount was 627 and the 
FTE 570.2 These figures do not include our variable or contingent workforce.  
 

 Forecasted spend on pay costs for employees is estimated to be £528,000. 
lower than expected against a budget of £ 27,848,427 (equating to us 
spending 98.1% of the anticipated staffing budget).  In contrast to this there is 
an estimated overspend of £814,000 on contractors and agency staff against 
an expected spend of £326,000. Netting out at an underspend of £285,000 
against staffing budget when the underspend and the existing budget are 
taken into account.   

 
 Turnover has decreased to 13.7% from the 14.8% reported in the previous 

Quarter with the top reason for leaving being job change, with the next being 
other covering things from retirement to ill health.  The areas with the highest 
turnover in this Quarter are Strategic Insights and Delivery (SI&D), Operations 
and Planning. 

 
 SI&D is a small directorate with a number of services that sit under it and with 

leavers in a number of areas this makes the annualised turnover higher.  
Operations is an area that is expected to be higher. Planning continues to be 
high, however there were only 2 leavers from the department in the quarter. 

 
 Turnover continues to reduce this quarter, which has been a continuous trend 

for the last 12 months and is now below both the LGA and National average 
and remains on target with the Corporate PI’s. 

 
 The number of roles advertised in the quarter has increased compared to the 

previous quarter, with 65 roles advertised compared to 39 the previous 
quarter. The number of offers made increased from 51 in the previous Quarter 
to the 80 in the current Quarter. The most difficult areas to recruit to within 
HDC are Planning and Leisure.  

Page 9 of 82

Agenda Item 3



2

 
 Following a trial to use Public Practice, who provide specialist skills to be 

placed within hard-to-fill positions within Local Authorities, we successfully 
recruited an associate in the role of Senior Development Officer, using this 
and other methods to help improve our reach to candidates. 

 
 In the period there has been a number of engagement activities, most notably 

the launch of the Level 5 and Level 7 Leadership and Management 
apprenticeships.  Both of these courses have seen high levels of interest.  We 
have also commenced twelve more apprenticeships 1 of which is for new 
hires to HDC joining on an apprenticeship contract. 

 
 The annual average sickness figure has increased to 8.3 days lost per FTE 

from 7.9 days per FTE reported for the previous Quarter and has increased 
compared to the same Quarter last year (Q1 2022/23 7.9 days lost). This is 
however lower than the CIPD National reported days lost for absence in the 
public sector which is reported at 10.6 days per person. 

 
 Sickness has increased in the last quarter, which due to it being the summer 

months was not expected, however this increase has been driven by long 
term sickness (20 people) that we are seeing and not short term sickness, 
which is low as expected, current days lost per FTE sits at 3.8 days.  As you 
will see in the case work data there has been an increase in sickness cases 
which demonstrates that they are being managed appropriately by managers 

 
 The HR caseload increased significantly in this Quarter compared to previous 

one.   Nearly 60% of the active cases managed in the Quarter relate to 
sickness absence management. 87.2% of cases were managed informally.  

 
 At the previous committee it was asked about if there are any KPIs around 

Health and Safety and whilst there are not at the moment HDC are in the 
process of switching us over to a new online Accident Management System 
which will automatically generate a variety of KPI’s for the authority as well 
ones for individual departments (e.g. Office staff, Operations, One Leisure).  
This is being worked on with our neighbouring councils so we can have a 
consistent approach.  

 
 Work has commenced on the engagement for the workforce strategy to 

ensure that the strategy that is being created is reflective of our current 
workforce and their needs. This important commitment, an action within the 
Corporate Plan, is focused on our future needs for our workforce. Dedicated 
resource is in place to deliver a wide range of work, engaging with staff, 
employee groups and Unions to help the Council have a stronger plan for our 
future needs. Staff surveys, workshops, research work to find external best 
practice and many other activities are underway 

 

 

Page 10 of 82



3

Authors:  Strategic HR Manager and HR Manager 
Contributors: Finance Business Partner, HR Advisor; Resource and Talent 
Development Manager; Health and Safety Manager 

Date:  20 October 2023 

  

Page 11 of 82



4

CONTENTS 

1.0 Employee Profile ..............................................................................................6 

1.1 Headcount and FTE .........................................................................................6 

1.2 Workforce by Contract Type ...........................................................................6 

1.3 Paybill ...............................................................................................................7 

1.4 High earners .....................................................................................................7 

1.5 Leavers .............................................................................................................8 

1.6 Turnover ...........................................................................................................9 

1.7 Recruitment Metrics ......................................................................................10 

1.8 Recruitment Challenges/Successes ............................................................11 

1.9 Employee Engagement .................................................................................13 

1.10 Time off for Trade Union Duties ...................................................................14 

2.0 Sickness Absence .........................................................................................14 

2.1 Trend of Working Days Lost Across HDC ...................................................15 

2.2 Trend of Working Days Lost Across HDC by Quarter ................................16 

2.3 Reasons For Sickness Absence ..................................................................17 

2.4 Sickness Absence Breakdown .....................................................................18 

2.5 Sickness Absence Reporting by Service ....................................................18 

3.0 HR Caseload ...................................................................................................19 

3.1 Breakdown of HR cases by Type .................................................................19 

4.0 Equalities Data ...............................................................................................20 

4.1 Workforce by Age and Grade .......................................................................20 

4.2 Workforce by grade and length of Service ..................................................21 

4.3 Workforce by Gender ....................................................................................22 

4.4 Employees by Grade and Gender ................................................................22 

4.5 Workforce by Ethnicity ..................................................................................22 

4.6 Disability Data ................................................................................................22 

Page 12 of 82



5

5.0 Accident / Incident Reports ..........................................................................23 

5.1 Operations Services ......................................................................................23 

5.2 Office based premises ..................................................................................23 

5.3 One Leisure and One Leisure Active Lifestyles .........................................24 

6.0 Equality Actions 2023 – Summary On a Page .............................................26 

  

Page 13 of 82



6

1.0 EMPLOYEE PROFILE 

Definition:  Headcount is the number of employees working within the Council, 
counting primary roles only.  

A full time equivalent (referred to as FTE) is a measure of an employee’s workload 
to make the position comparable across the workforce based on a 37-hour full-time 
working week. For example, an FTE of 0.5 indicates that the employee works half of 
a full-time working week (18.5 hours). 

1.1 HEADCOUNT AND FTE 

At the end of Quarter One (30 September 2023), the total number of permanent and 
Fixed term employees employed by Huntingdonshire District Council was 629 
(excluding those employed on a variable or casual hour basis) with the number of 
full-time equivalent posts at 571.58. 

 

1.2 WORKFORCE BY CONTRACT TYPE  

Data on Variable employees (zero hours basis contracts) is included in the below 
table.  However, data on Variables are not included in the other areas of the 
workforce reporting.  Variables are typically employed in multiple positions across 
Leisure services; though a small number of Variables are employed in Operations, 
Recovery Services, ICT.  At the end of Q2 HDC had 448 individuals employed in 975 
posts. This is an increase from quarter one. 

Below table numbers may vary as includes employees with multiple contracts/ 
positions.   

 

End of 
Q2 

2021/22

End of 
Q3 

2021/22

End of 
Q4 

2021/22

End of 
Q1 

2022/23

End of 
Q2 

2022/23

End of 
Q3 

2022/23

End of 
Q4 

2022/23

End of 
Q1 

2023/24

End of 
Q2 

2023/24
Headcount 645 646 656 638 627 621 619 627 629
FTE 592.

2 590.03 597.65 582.
1

574.
4

565.
7

563.
1

570.
2 571.58

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Headcount & FTE Trend

N
um

be
r o

f E
m

pl
oy

ee
s

Page 14 of 82



7

Employment Type Quarter Two Quarter One  
Fixed Term  41 36  
Permanent 574 578  
Secondment/Acting 
Up 18 20  

Grand Total 633 634  
Variable 
employees  448 (975) 421 (925)  

 

1.3 PAYBILL  

The following table shows the Council’s budget, forecasted spend on pay costs 
(including National Insurance and pension contributions) for all employees but 
excluding hired staff (contractors and agency staff). Forecasted spend on pay costs 
for employees is estimated to be £528,760 lower than budget (equating to us spending 
98.1% of the anticipated staffing budget).  In contrast to this there is an estimated 
overspend of £814,000 on contractors and agency staff compared to a budget of £ 
326,015. Netting out at an underspend of approximately £ 285,650 against staffing 
budget when the underspend and the existing budget are taken into account.   
 

Year Budget (£) Actual (£) Forecast 
(£) 

2016/17 22,526,917 21,903,947   
2017/18 24,591,631 23,536,053   
2018/19 25,230,515 23,192,646   
2019/20 24,871,268 23,941,696   
2020/21 25,679,601  24,240,402   
2021/22 25,377,310 25,421,307   
2022/23 27,330,175 26,467,958   
2023/24 27,848,428   27,319,655 

 

 

1.4 HIGH EARNERS   

Definition: High earners are classified as employees who are paid at £50,000 or 
above. This information is already published annually in line with the Government’s 
commitment to improve transparency across the public sector and the target hasn’t 
changed since it was introduced.  The Councils pay policy distinguishes 
authorisation of salaries over £75,000 per annum. 

At the end of Quarter Two 53 employees were paid at FTE salaries of £50,000 or 
above, representing 8.4% of the total workforce. 1.1% of the workforce are paid 
salaries over £75,0000. The total number of employees classed as high earners has  

Page 15 of 82



8

increased from the previous Quarter (47). This increase is primarily down to the cost 
of living pay award that was agreed in October 2023. 

1.5 LEAVERS  

During Quarter Two, 18 full-time/part-time employees on permanent or fixed-term 
contracts left the organisation, which is lower than the total leaving in the previous 
Quarter (23).  

6 of the leavers from Q2, resigned to take up other posts with either commercial or 
public sector employers, which is the same as last quarters report.  There were 3 
individuals who retired that had a combined Service with local government of 43 
years.  
 

Leaving Reason Fixed Term Permanent Total 
Leaver - Dismissal - Capability 0 1 1 
Leaver - Dismissal - Misconduct 0 1 1 
Leaver - Failed Probation 1 0 1 
Leaver - Retirement 0 3 3 
Leaver - Settlement Agreement 0 1 1 
Leaver - Voluntary Resignation - Health 
Reasons 0 1 1 
Leaver - Voluntary Resignation - New Job 
Offer (Private) 0 3 3 
Leaver - Voluntary Resignation - New Job 
Offer (Public) 0 3 3 
Leaver - Voluntary Resignation - Other 2 2 4 
Grand Total 3 15 18 

 
The table below show the above leavers service and whether they left voluntarily or 
not.  
 

Service 
 Involuntary Voluntary Total 

Turnover by 
Service * 

Strategic Insights and 
Delivery 0 5 5 8.40% 
Operations 2 5 7 5.15% 
Planning 0 2 2 4.55% 
Corporate Services 0 1 1 1.72% 
3C-ICT 1 0 1 1.22% 
Leisure and Health 0 1 1 1.01% 
COO Division 0 1 1 0.73% 
Grand Total 3 15 18  

 
* Turnover calculated by leavers against service size (head count, based on average 
size of the service across the quarter) 

 

Page 16 of 82



9

At the June 2023 employment committee, we were asked to share reasons for 
leaving across HDC, to do this we have interrogated the exit interview data that we 
receive, this will not be for all leavers as it is voluntary to complete.  But in the last 12 
months with have received 51 completed exit interviews and the table below shows a 
summary of the highest rated first reasons for leaving.  Some employees may have 
added more than one reason but we have just considered the first.  The top reasons 
for leaving are: 

Primary Reason for 
leaving  
Job Change 18 
Salary/Benefits 11 
Retirement 6 
End of contract 3 
Dissatisfaction 2 
Relocation  2 
Returning to 
Education 2 
Flexible Working 2 

 

As reflected in previous quarters the highest reasons for leaving are job change and 
salary and benefits.  Through the workforce strategy we will work to understand what 
further benefits would be attractive to employees and also work to highlight the 
variety of careers within HDC to focus on our internal talent before reaching to the 
market. 

In terms of the feedback - the top-rated response for leavers questionnaires about 
what they most liked about working for HDC related to the flexibility they had working 
here and the people they worked with.   In response to the question what they least 
liked about working for HDC the answer which came up the most was the lack of 
communication. Communication is one of the areas that will be looked at as part of 
the workforce strategy. 

1.6 TURNOVER 

In the 12 months to 30 September 23, 87 employees left the Council. As a proportion 
of the average number of permanent/Fixed Term employees over this period, the 
overall annual turnover rate for employees is 13.7%, which is lower than the previous 
quarter. This figure also continues the trend of turnover remaining within the forecast 
for the PI for turnover published within the Corporate Plan and reported to members 
as a part of the Q2 performance report. 

As can be seen from the graph below there was a steady rise in turnover in 2021 
with the figures peaking in March 2022 reaching 28%.  Since that point the turnover 

Page 17 of 82



10

figures have been reducing.  As can be seen by the two benchmarking lines we now 
below both the LGA benchmark and the UK Average.  

 

External factors are still impacting our turnover rates and pay still being the most 
frequent reason for people leaving which shows the economic climate is still playing 
a part. We expect to see the decreasing trend to continue with the external jobs 
market shrinking. 

 
1.7 RECRUITMENT METRICS 

Recruitment activity has increased from last quarter which is what you’d expect 
following the summer.   

Of the 80 offers made 10 were existing HDC staff, promoted or moving into other 
positions around the council.  The HR team will continue to support the business with 
creating opportunities to grow and develop our workforce, careers, and mobility 
around services.   

Advertised Roles  Q2 22/23 Q3 22/23 Q4 22/23 Q1 23/24 Q2 23/24 

  45 30 48 39 65 

 
Advertised Roles per business area Q2 

22/23 
Q3 
22/23 

Q4 
22/23 

Q1 
23/24 

Q2 
23/24 

ICT 8 3 2 4 5 

 
Corporate Services (HR, Finance, Facilities, 
Dem Services) 2 5 3 6 6 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Q2 2022/2023 Q3 2022/2023 Q4 2022/2023 Q1 2023/2024 Q2 2023/2024

Turnover LGA Benchmark UK Benchmark

Turnover with Benchmark

Page 18 of 82



11

COO (Development/Planning, Community, 
Revs & Bens, Customer Services) 10 12 3 6 11  

Strategic Housing & Growth 0 3 2 0 1  

One Leisure 23 6 18 7 11  

Recovery Services (Car parking; Countryside, 
Parks & Open Spaces) 3 5 0 9 9  

Operations (Waste, CCTV, Grounds 
Maintenance, Street Cleaning) 6 11 17 3 22  

Executive/Transformation/Communications 2 0 3 4 0  

 
Q2 
22/23 

Q3 
22/23 

Q4 
22/23 

Q1 
23/24 

Q2 
23/24 

Number of candidates applied 

209 
 

183 296 356 341 

 

The most popular source of recruitment for candidates offered employment are: 

 The HDC website 
 Internal applicants  
 External website (Indeed/LinkedIn/Facebook)  

 

 

1.8 RECRUITMENT CHALLENGES/SUCCESSES 

It has been an incredibly busy quarter and the recruitment team have been working 
hard to provide a more agile and proactive service. We now offer mid-way check in’s 
with hiring managers to get a sense of quality of candidates and are able to offer 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Q2 22/23 Q3 22/23 Q4 22/23 Q1 23/24 Q2 23/24

Permanent offers FTC/Temporary offers

Variable (zero hours basis) offers Offers made and candidates Withdrawn

Offers of employment made

Page 19 of 82



12

intervention of paid advertising if necessary which is resulting in a reduction of failed 
campaigns.    

Work continues on improvements to our careers website to promote HDC as an 
employer of choice which will include a ‘staff voices’ page where we can highlight the 
positive experiences of our colleagues and showcase that we truly are a flexible 
employer. This is due to go live shortly, and an update will be shared in the Q3 
report. 

To improve candidate experience, we have created and successfully trialed an 
online application form which will be used for the majority of roles to align with the 
launch of the improved career website.  

Challenges for recruitment continue in roles which are grades A-C, we have re-
imagined our approach to social media in the hopes this yields increased 
applications. 

Following a trial to use Public Practice, who provide specialist skills to be placed 
within hard-to-fill positions within Local Authorities, we successfully recruited an 
associate in the role of Senior Development Officer. Historically, this has been a very 
challenging role to recruit for with a number of failed campaigns, this is an excellent 
example of the benefits of approaching recruitment in a different way.  

The most difficult Service to recruit currently is One Leisure, particularly cleaning 
staff and Team Leaders. This is not unique to HDC, according to Employer News, 
94% hospitality and leisure businesses are struggling to recruit, with vacancies for 
cleaning staff (20%), front of house staff (18%), and delivery staff (16%) causing the 
most issues. There are particularly acute shortages of cleaners in the East Midlands 
and the East of England (28%) with a number of organisations within the area 
competing for the same talent. The HR team are supporting One Leisure and these 
issues will form part of the thinking with any service review with career pathways 
very much at the forefront. 

Page 20 of 82



13

 

1.9 EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 

Activities that have taken place in the last quarter to help support employee 
engagement and aide in retention the following activities have taken place: 

 The Level 5 Leadership and Management apprenticeship cohort was 
launched on 4th September this cohort is an open cohort working together with 
a cohort from Lambeth Council. The Level 7 Leadership and Management 
apprenticeship has been advertised to all staff with a good level of interest 
and applications are currently being worked through with the next programme 
planned to start in October.  
 
Planned future activities are to: 
 

 For the next level apprenticeship courses to start and our level 3 cohort in 
Leadership and management to complete their apprenticeships.  Following 
the success of this level there is work underway to see when and how we can 
offer another cohort. 

 The HR Manager – Projects has joined HDC to lead the creation and 
implementation of the workforce strategy and will achieve this through 
engagement with the entire workforce. 
 

 The 2023/24 pay award has been agreed following engagement with UNISON 
and the whole staff body. 

Learning & development 

From the beginning of July through to the end of September 2023 Learning and 
Development have signed up 12 new apprenticeships; 11 are existing employees 

Page 21 of 82



14

and 1 is a new apprentice contract.  The apprenticeships being undertaken range 
from Level 7 Chartered town planner, and Community sports and health officer at 
Level 3. Two of the Level 3 Leadership and Management cohort have left HDC and 
their apprenticeships have been stopped as their new employer does not accept 
transfers. 

The figures shown in the table below are as at the end of September 2023. 

Enquiries Live 
apprenticeships 

Level 
3 

Level 
4 

Level 
5 

Level 
6 

Level 
7 

Signing 
up 

4 44 27 4 10 1 2 7  

 

1.10 TIME OFF FOR TRADE UNION DUTIES 

Following the agreement of the Time off for Trade Union Duties this report will 
capture the facilities time for Stewards.  The details in quarter 2 are: 
 

Period Training 
Hours 

Official Duties 
Hours 

Q1 111 22 
Q2 0 41 

 
The training hours are reflective of new Steward training. 
 
2.0 SICKNESS ABSENCE 

Definition:  Long term sickness is classified as a continuous period of absence of 
28 or more calendar days.  All other periods of absence are defined as short term. 

The absence data is calculated per full-time equivalent (FTE) as per the guidelines 
set out in the previous Best Value Performance Indicators (former statutory dataset) 
for sickness to account for adjustments in working hours.  

Trigger points for management action under HDC policy are as follows: 
• 3 or more periods of absence in a rolling 3-month period 
• 6 or more periods of absence in a rolling 12-month period 
• 8 working days or more in a rolling 12-month period 
• Long term absence of 28 calendar days or more 
• Pattern of absence (e.g., regular Friday and/or Monday; repeated absences 
linked to holidays) 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 82



15

2.1 TREND OF WORKING DAYS LOST ACROSS HDC  

The graph shows the trend in sickness absence per FTE employee over a rolling 
period to the end of each Quarter since September 2021. It shows that sickness 
absence to the end of Quarter two has increased to 8.2 days per FTE.  If we were to 
remove long-term sickness from these figures then it would equate to 3.8 days per 
FTE.  

 

 

The graph below shows Working days lost per FTE over time and highlights that we 
had historically low levels of sickness during covid times but now we have returned 
to normal our sickness levels.  These levels sit against a backdrop of nationally 
record high sickness levels.  The CIPD has recently reported that national sickness 
average for the public sector of 10.6 days per employee. HDC is currently well below 
this figure.  

 

5.4
6

6.6
7.6 7.9 8.4 8.3 7.9 8.2

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Year 
to 30/09/2021

Year 
to 31/12/2021

Year 
to 31/03/2022

Year 
to 30/06/2022

Year 
to 30/09/2022

Year 
to 31/12/2022

Year 
to 31/03/2023

Year 
to 30/06/2023

Year 
to 30/09/2023

Days lost per FTE in 12 Months to Quarter End

Da
ys

 L
os

t p
er

 F
TE

Page 23 of 82



16

 

 

2.2 TREND OF WORKING DAYS LOST ACROSS HDC BY QUARTER 
 
The total number of working days lost in Quarter Two (1199) this is higher than in the 
previous Quarter; as is the days lost per FTE (2.0) for sickness absence.   
 

 
 

80
2.

00

66
2.

50

79
8.

50

65
4.

50

1,
00

3.
50 1,

17
8.

50

1,
20

2.
00 1,

20
9.

50

1,
08

8.
50 1,

40
6.

50

1,
10

0.
00

1,
00

1.
00

1,
19

9.
00

1.4

1

1.3

1.1

1.6

1.9 1.9
2

1.8

2.4

1.9

1.7

2

0.00

200.00

400.00

600.00

800.00

1,000.00

1,200.00

1,400.00

1,600.00

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q4 2020/21

Q1 2021/22

Q2 2021/22

Q3 2021/22

Q4 2021/22

Q1 2022/23

Q2 2022/23

Q3 2022/23

Q4 2022/23

Q1 2023/24

Q2 2023/24

Number of Days Lost FTE

Trend of Days Lost per FTE per Quarter

N
um

be
r o

f D
ay

s L
os

t

Page 24 of 82



17

124 employees were absent due to sickness in Quarter Two which is 19.6%* of all 
those employed during the period (excluding those with variable/casual posts only).   
 
(*percentage is based on average headcount during Quarter)  
 
2.3 REASONS FOR SICKNESS ABSENCE  
 
Please see the top 5 reasons for sickness absence by category below: - 
 

Absence Reason 
Days 
Lost 

Employees Percentage 

Musculoskeletal problems inc back and neck 287 12 23.94% 
Stress Anxiety Depression (Personal) 229 10 19.10% 
Cough cold flu influenza eye ear nose and 
throat problems (including infection) 115.5 

24 9.63% 

Gastrointestinal -  abdominal pain vomiting 
diarrhoea gastroenteritis 106.5 

26 8.88% 

Asthma chest respiratory heart cardiac 
circulatory 87 

6 7.26% 

 
In the last 3 years the top 5 reasons have been: 
  

Reason 22-23 

Total 
Number 
of days 

Stress Anxiety Depression (Personal) 623.5 
Musculoskeletal problems inc back and neck 513 
Asthma chest respiratory heart cardiac circulatory 461 
Cough cold flu influenza eye ear nose and throat problems 
(including infection) 455 
Gastrointestinal -  abdominal pain vomiting diarrhoea gastroenteritis 416 

 

Reason 21-22 

Total 
Number 
of days 

Covid-19 816.5 
Musculoskeletal problems inc back and neck 537.5 
Benign and malignant tumours or cancers 500 
Cough cold flu influenza eye ear nose and throat problems 
(including infection) 452.5 
Asthma chest respiratory heart cardiac circulatory 388.5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 82



18

Reason 20-21 

Total 
Number 
of days 

Musculoskeletal problems inc back and neck 500 
Stress Anxiety Depression (Personal) 472 
Injury fracture 344.5 
Asthma chest respiratory heart cardiac circulatory 248 
Gastrointestinal -  abdominal pain vomiting diarrhoea gastroenteritis 215.5 

 
These reports show that the top 5 reasons remain consistent and in line with what 
we have been seeing recently.   
 
2.4 SICKNESS ABSENCE BREAKDOWN 
 
Days lost due to long-term sickness has increased in Q2, from the previous Quarter. 
The % of absence increased due to the reduction in headcount. 
 

Quarter 
Total days of 
long-term 
sickness 

Total Working 
days lost 
(Short term 
sickness) 

% of total 
absence long-
term 

% of total 
absence 
short-term 

Q2 
2022/23 647 (11) 441.5 59.40% 40.60% 

Q3 
2022/23 771 (15) 635.5 54.82% 45.18% 

Q4 
2022/23 348 (8) 752  31.6% 68.4% 

Q1 
2023/24 590 (11) 411 58.9% 41.1% 

Q2 
2023/24 820 (20) 379 68.3% 31.7% 

  
*Brackets denotes number of employees absent. 
 
 
2.5 SICKNESS ABSENCE REPORTING BY SERVICE 
 
The table below shows the sickness by service. It can be seen it has decreased from 
last quarter in 4 services, and increased in 5, compared to the last quarter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 82



19

Service 
Number 
Employees absent 
in Quarter 2 

 

Total days 
sick Q2 

Total days 
sick Q1  

Chief Operating 
Officer 30 353.5 384 

 

Corporate Services 9 61 22  
Digital & ICT Services 12 134.5 49  
Executive 1 1 2  
Growth 1 12 1  
Leisure and Health 21 30 110  
Operations 33 465 261  
Planning 14 16 137  
Strategic Insights & 
Delivery 8 126 35 

 

OVERALL 
124 
(19.6% of HDC 
employees*) 

 
1199 

 
1001  

*percentage is based on average head count during Quarter.  
 
 
3.0 HR CASELOAD 
 
The HR Team’s caseload is recorded to provide an indicator of the type of HR issues 
that the organisation has been dealing with over the last 12 months. 
 
 
3.1 BREAKDOWN OF HR CASES BY TYPE  
 
 

 
 
During Quarter two, there were 102 cases in progress, of which 13 were dealt with 
under formal procedures. The Overall total was higher than in the previous Quarter, 
with cases for the previous Quarter also shown below for comparison purposes.  In 

69 70
80

65

102

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 Q3 2022/23 Q4 2022/23 Q1 2023/24

Number of Active Cases

Page 27 of 82



20

line with our absence data it can be seen that sickness is being actively managed as 
this is the area where we see highest case work consistently. 
 
Type of Case Informal 

Cases 
Formal 
Cases 

Total 
Q2 

Previous 
Quarter 

Appeals 0 0 0 0 
Capability – Sickness 49 10 59 37 
Capability – Performance 4 0 4 3 
Consultations (including TUPE) 0 0 0 1 
Bullying and Harassment  0 1 1 1 
Disciplinary 18 1 19 8 
Employment Tribunals 0 0 0 0 
Flexible Working Requests 3 0 3 6 
Grievance 6 0 6 4 
Probation 1 1 2 0 
Subject Access Request 0 0 0 0 
Other 8 0 8 5 
Total 89 13 102 65 

 
 

 
 
 

4.0 EQUALITIES DATA 

Equality Data may be presented using percentages and not specific numbers as in 
some cases the sharing of specific numbers would mean that a small group of 
people could be easily identified. 

4.1 WORKFORCE BY AGE AND GRADE  

As requested at the January 2023 employment committee we are including the 
workforce based on Age and Grade.  The number of employees by 5-year age band 
is depicted below by pay grade. Please note that where an employee has two jobs 
on different grades, they have been counted within their age band against both 
grades.  This information shows that we do not have any specific pinch points 
around this with age groups spread across the grades. 
 

Page 28 of 82



21

 
 
 

For the purposes of simplifying this graph, employees who have transferred into the 
Council on existing terms and conditions have been linked to Huntingdonshire 
District Council pay grades based on their current salary levels. 

4.2 WORKFORCE BY GRADE AND LENGTH OF SERVICE  

 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

16-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70+

Grade SM Plus

Grade SM

Grade I

Grade H

Grade G

Grade F

Grade E

Grade D

Grade C

Grade B

Grade A

Workforce by Age and Grade

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Grade A Grade B Grade C Grade D Grade E Grade F Grade G Grade H Grade I Grade SMGrade SM 
Plus

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 3-4 years 5-9 years 10-14 Years 15-19 years 20+ years

Grade by Length of Service

Page 29 of 82



22

4.3 WORKFORCE BY GENDER 

318   309 

 

4.4 EMPLOYEES BY GRADE AND GENDER 

 

4.5 WORKFORCE BY ETHNICITY 

Ethnicity 
% of 
workforce 

Asian  2.07% 
Black  1.44% 
Mixed 0.96% 
Other  0.64% 
White 81.18% 
Not Declared 13.72% 

 
4.6 DISABILITY DATA 

Disability 
Status 

% of work 
force 

No 71.61% 
Yes 10.85% 
Not Known 1.75% 
Not Declared 15.79% 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Grade A Grade B Grade C Grade D Grade E Grade F Grade G Grade H Grade I Grade SMGrade SM 
Plus

Female Male

Grade by Gender

Page 30 of 82



23

 
5.0 ACCIDENT / INCIDENT REPORTS 

This section reports on the number and nature of accidents and incidents occurring 
in owned, managed and occupied premises or associated with work activities 
undertaken by the Council’s employees, during quarter 2. 
 

Definition:  Accidents reported to the Incident Control Centre under the 
requirements of the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 
Regulations are referred to as RIDDOR accidents. 

 
5.1 OPERATIONS SERVICES 

There were no RIDDOR accidents reported.  
There were two non-RIDDOR accidents relating to employees recorded. 
The table below summarises these by nature and severity:  

No of cases 
Type Category Severity  

Q1 Q2 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Slips, trips or 
falls on same 
level 

Taken to 
Hospital 1 1 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Strike against 
something fixed 
or stationary 

Hospital 
Recommended 1 0 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Struck by 
moving, including 
flying/falling, 
object 

First Aid 2 0 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Slips, trips or 
falls on same 
level 

First Aid 1 1 

 
 
5.2 OFFICE BASED PREMISES 

There were no RIDDOR accidents reported.   
There were no non-RIDDOR accidents relating to employees recorded.  
There was one non-RIDDOR accident relating to a non-employee recorded.  
The table below summarises these by nature and severity:  
 
 
 

Page 31 of 82



24

No of cases Type Category Severity  
Q1 Q2 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Struck by 
moving, including 
flying/falling, 
object 

First aid  1 0 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Slips, trips or 
falls on same 
level 

First aid  0 1 

 
 
5.3 ONE LEISURE AND ONE LEISURE ACTIVE LIFESTYLES 

There were no RIDDOR accidents reported.   
There was one non-RIDDOR accident relating to an employee recorded. 
The following table summarises these by nature and severity: 
 

No of cases 
Type Category Severity  

Q1 Q2 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Slips, trips or 
falls on same 
level 

Taken to 
Hospital 1 0 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Strike against 
something fixed 
or stationary 

Hospital 
Recommended 1 0 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Struck by 
moving, including 
flying/falling, 
object 

First Aid 2 1 

Non-RIDDOR 
accident 

Slips, trips or 
falls on same 
level 

First Aid 1 0 

 
 
A total of thirty-five accidents were recorded involving non-employees.  
There were no RIDDOR reportable accidents involving non-employees recorded. 
There were nine recommendations to seek further medical attention and two 
ambulances were called. 
 

At the previous committee it was asked about if there are any KPIs around Health 
and Safety and whilst there are not at the moment HDC are in the process of 
switching us over to a new online Accident Management System which will 
automatically generate a variety of KPI’s for the authority as well ones for individual 

Page 32 of 82



25

departments (e.g. Office staff, Operations, One Leisure).  This is being worked on 
with our neighbouring councils so we can have a consistent approach.   

Page 33 of 82



26

6.0 EQUALITY ACTIONS 2023 – SUMMARY ON A PAGE 

 

 Status 

Update the website with the pledge and include this in 
advertisement of roles. 

 

Further work needs to be done on education around 
menopause generally and in particularly with managers 
so that they are able to support staff in the best way. 

 

Gender 

Creation of Menopause champions to lead the work in 
this area. 

 

Work is in progress to communicate the adjustments 
passport with managers and employees that have 
declared a disability.    

Completed  

Ensure the new Disability at Work Policy is 
incorporated into existing processes for managing 
sickness to ensure employees are given a copy. 

Completed  

Review sickness forms to enable reasonable 
adjustments to be a part of the discussions and 
documented. 

Completed  

HDC will need to continue to increase the declaration 
rate 

 

Update the website with the Disability Confident Pledge 
and include this in recruitment adverts.  

 

Explore with IT a Dyslexia friendly font, so that emails 
can be in the correct size, justified appropriately and 
using the correct font. 

 

Disability  

Explore Mindful employer charter, this charter is about 
taking positive approach to mental health at work. 

 

Page 34 of 82



27

The recruitment team have been going out to colleges 
to attract potential applicants and will continue to do 
this.  

Completed  

Work continues on Industrial Placements to attract 
younger candidates. 

Completed  

Continue to work on bringing in more Apprenticeships Completed  

Age 

Workforce strategy will speak to staff about what they 
value at HDC and what they want to see more of 

Ongoing  

Sexual 
Orientation  

Work needs to be done on the not declared rate and 
education on the categories on the system will help with 
this, as this could be contributing.   

 

Improve declaration rate and explore breaking down 
categories such as white into ‘white other’ to give a 
better comparison against Census data. 

 

Explore The Race at work charter and UNISON Anti 
Racism Charter to see which actions can be 
implemented at HDC.  

 

Ethnicity 

Feed into the workforce strategy on culture and cultural 
celebrations and what employees feel could be done in 
this area. 

 

As above feed into work force strategy to celebrate 
cultural days 

 Religion 
and Belief 

 More data is needed on the non-declaration rate. 

Explore combining some categories going forward to 
help with comparison 

 

General 
Actions 

 

Work during 2022/2023 has focused on decreasing the 
number of employees that have not declared their 
protected characteristics.  This has helped to improve 
the data but will need to continue through managers 
and individuals by explaining the benefits of capturing 
this information and by being specific about the data 
that is missing. 

 

Page 35 of 82



28

Update the Equal Opportunities Policy.  

Training on Equal Opportunities  

HR involvement in Equality meetings with other 
Councils to share best practice. 

 

Run unconscious bias training for managers relating to 
recruitment. 

 

Make the roles advertised look more accessible to 
people who may not have the exact skills by advertising 
training opportunities relating to roles. 

 

Focusing more on transferable skills to allow more 
people to apply rather than being prescriptive, in 
addition asking for equivalent experience rather than 
the focus being on qualifications. 

 

Explore employee networks for different groups to 
support and develop each other, feed into HR Policies, 
communications, learning and development and 
Equality actions. 

 

Review where and how we promote our roles, ensuring 
inclusivity. 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 82



 
 
HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter:  HR Policy Update  
 
Meeting/Date:   Employment Committee – 22 November 2023 
 
Executive Portfolio:  Cllr Martin Hassall (MH) 
 
Report by:   Strategic HR Manager (NB) 
 
Ward(s) affected:  N/A 

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
As noted in the November 2022 committee meeting HR are undertaking a 
programme of reviewing and refreshing our current policies to ensure that they are 
accurate, legally compliant and reflect current practice within HDC.  We are therefore 
bringing the next set of policies we have reviewed to you.   
 
The policies reviewed in this period are: 

 IR35 Off Payroll working regulations; Status Determination Disagreement 
Process 

 Disciplinary Policy and Procedure 
 Sickness Absence and Attendance Policy 
 Volunteer Policy 
 Redundancy Policy 
 

 
Summary of the changes: 
Policy  Amendments 
IR35 Off Payroll 
working regulations; 
Status Determination 
Disagreement 
Process 

Review and update to contact details.  Front cover and 
version control added 

Disciplinary Policy 
and Procedure 

Updated contents page, flow chart re suspensions.  
Changed Senior Management and Corporate 
Management to Leadership Team.  Streamlined to 
reflects current practice and taken out counselling as 
this is done through EAP. 

Sickness Absence 
and Attendance 
Policy 

Date stamp refresh and some wording clarified 

Public
Key Decision - No

Page 37 of 82

Agenda Item 5



 
Volunteer Policy Date stamp refresh 
Redundancy Policy Added Employee Representative Group and UNISON 

to 8.6 
Date Stamp refresh 

 
 
Full copies of the policies are included in the appendices for your information. 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
The Committee is asked to consider and endorse the updated policies. 
 
 

Page 38 of 82



2.1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report draws Committee attention to the revised polices and that we are 

seeking endorsement to use the new format. 
 
2.2 WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND 
 
a. The main reason for these policies being updated is to ensure that we have 

legally compliant, up to date and in line with current processes polices that are 
accessible for all to use. 

b. It is also ensures we have correct version control on the document to reflect any 
changes as we move forward. 

c. Finally, this will ensure that all policies going forward will reflect the correct 
employee representative groups.  

 
2.3 KEY IMPACTS / RISKS 
 
a. Having up to date policies that are regularly reviewed ensure that we are legally 

complaint and that our processes are robust by following them, reducing any 
risks of potential future claims. 

 
2.4 WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
 
a. The updated policies will replace the current polices on our employment policy 

section of the intranet.  
 
2.5 LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND/OR 

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
(See Corporate Plan) 

 
a. To have an engaged and motivated workforce, as part of being a more efficient 

and effective council – through updated, clear employment policies. 
 
2.6 CONSULTATION 
 
a. Senior Leadership Team, the Employee Representative Group and UNISON 

have been briefed and given the opportunity to review the proposed policy 
changes and support them.   

 
2.7 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS  
 
a. Adoption of the revised policies will ensure that HDC is legally complaint and has 

a clear trail of policy amendments. 
 
2.8 LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 
 

Page 39 of 82

https://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s122235/Corporate%20Plan%202022-26%20-%20Updated%20Appendix%201.pdf


Appendix 1 - IR35 Off Payroll working regulations; Status Determination Disagreement 
Process 
Appendix 2 - Disciplinary Policy and Procedure 
Appendix 3 - Sickness Absence and Attendance Policy 
Appendix 4 - Volunteer Policy 
Appendix 5 – Redundancy Policy 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  

CONTACT OFFICER

Name/Job Title: Nicki Bane
Tel No: 01480 388422
Email: nicki.bane@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 40 of 82



Appendix 1. 
 

IR35 Off Payroll working regulations; Status 
Determination Disagreement Process 

 
1:1 

 
 
Version Control 
Version Author Date Changes 
1:1 Sam Sanderson October 2023 Review and update to 

contact details.  Front cover 
and version control added 

    
    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name of Policy IR35 Off Payroll working regulations; Status 

Determination Disagreement Process 
Person/posts 
responsible 

Strategic HR Manager 

Date approved/adopted 22 November 2023 
Approved by Employment Committee 
Review Date November 2025 

  

Page 41 of 82



 
 
IR35 Off Payroll working regulations; Status Determination 
Disagreement Process 
 
The off payroll working regulations (commonly known as IR35 rules) require hirers to 
have a status determination disagreement process; and whenever contractors are 
assessed both a copy of their Status Determination along with confirmation that they 
have a right to dispute should they disagree; is provided to the contractor and agency 
(where applicable). 
 
1.0 Statement 
 
1.1 This disputes process intends to deal with complaints from individuals, and/or 

their agency, who disagree with the decision that their engagement falls within 
IR35.  The handling of the disputes will be managed in line with the appropriate 
regulations.   

 
1.2 HMRC consider the accurate outputs from the enhanced version of its CEST 

(Check Employment Status for Tax) tool for checking employment status 
decisions, meet the legislative requirements to be a valid Status Determination 
Statement (SDS).  HDC will use the CEST tool as part of its consideration of 
SDS disputes. 

 
1.2 Contractors or the agency have a right to make representations if they believe 

the status determination was incorrect, or if they believe the contractual terms 
and/or working practices have changed over time.  Complaints can be received 
in writing, these complaints should be addressed to 
recruitment@huntingdonshire.gov.uk and should contain the reasons why they 
disagree, to fully consider the representations. 

1.3 Representations can be made at any time. However, HDC will only consider and 
respond to representations made before the final chain payment is made in relation 
to that engagement.  

1.5 The dispute will be reviewed by the Recruitment team or appropriate 
representative and a response in writing will be sent within 45 days of receipt of 
status determination (SD) disagreement, informing the contractor or the agency 
of the outcome of its considerations.   
1.5.1 If it is concluded that the original determination was correct, reasons why it 

believes the original determination was correct will be provided.   
1.5.2 If on review it is concluded that the original determination was incorrect, a 

revised status determination statement will be issued, with the date this 
new SD became applicable and state that the previous SD is withdrawn. 

 
1.6 The outcome of the status determination process is final. 

Page 42 of 82

mailto:recruitment@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


TEMPLATE LETTER 

Dear [ ] 

Your appeal against status determination for IR35 purposes 

I refer to your appeal against our determination of your status for the purposes of [your 
ongoing role as [details of individual's role] / the project you are working on for us from 
[date] until [date] ]. 

In our original status determination of [date], we assessed that, for tax purposes, your 
engagement with us falls "inside IR35". In other words, we decided that you would have 
employee status if engaged directly by [name of organisation], meaning that we would 
be responsible for deducting tax and national insurance contributions (NICs) from 
payments we make to you and paying these deductions to HM Revenue & Customs 
(HMRC). 

Decision to uphold your appeal 

We have considered your representations and reached an alternative determination 
using HMRC's online CEST tool at www.gov.uk/guidance/check-employment-status-for-
tax. 

We have now reassessed that, for tax purposes, your engagement with us falls "outside 
IR35". In other words, we have decided that you are in fact an independent, self-
employed contractor and we will pay your fees in full, without deducting tax and national 
insurance contributions (NICs) from payments made to you. 

In particular, please note the following results from this alternative determination: 

 [Set out here any particular outcomes that you would like to highlight or that 
would help to explain the new results to the individual. See Notes for examples of 
some of the issues that CEST may have identified.] 

A copy of the report that we generated on [date] via the CEST tool is attached for your 
records. HMRC has said that it "will stand by this result as long as it reflects the actual 
or expected working practices".  

Queries or concerns 

If you have any queries or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact [me/name of 
individual/the HR department].  

Yours sincerely 

[ ]  

Page 43 of 82

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/check-employment-status-for-tax
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/check-employment-status-for-tax
https://www.xperthr.co.uk/policies-and-documents/ir35-letter-allowing-individuals-appeal-against-status-determination/165773/#notes


Dear [ ] 

Your appeal against status determination for IR35 purposes 

I refer to your appeal against our determination of your status for the purposes of [your 
ongoing role as [details of individual's role] / the project you are working on for us from 
[date] until [date] ]. 

In our original status determination of [date], we assessed that, for tax purposes, your 
engagement with us falls "inside IR35". 

Decision to reject your appeal 

We have considered your representations and reached the same determination using 
HM Revenue & Customs' (HMRC's) online CEST tool at www.gov.uk/guidance/check-
employment-status-for-tax. 

We maintain our assessment that, for tax purposes, your engagement with us falls 
"inside IR35". In other words, we maintain that you would have employee status if 
engaged directly by us, meaning that we are responsible for deducting tax and national 
insurance contributions (NICs) from payments we make to you and paying these 
deductions to HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC). 

In particular, please note the following results from this redetermination: 

 [Set out here any particular outcomes that you would like to highlight or that 
would help to explain the results to the individual. See Notes for examples of 
some of the issues that CEST may have identified.] 

A copy of the report that we generated on [date] via the CEST tool is attached for your 
records. HMRC has said that it "will stand by this result as long as it reflects the actual 
or expected working practices". 

Queries or concerns 

If you have any queries or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact [me/name of 
individual/the HR department]. 

Yours sincerely 

[ ] 

 
  

Page 44 of 82

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/check-employment-status-for-tax
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/check-employment-status-for-tax
https://www.xperthr.co.uk/policies-and-documents/ir35-letter-rejecting-individuals-appeal-against-status-determination/165774/#notes


 
 
Appendix 2 
 

Disciplinary Policy and Procedure 
Version 1.2 

 

 

Version Control 
Version Author Date Changes 
1.1 Shaistha Shah August 2022  Added front cover for version 

control – minor typos/sentence 
clarity, clarification that right to 
representation is not a legal 
right but allowed by HDC, 
changing staff council to ERG, 
title of First & final Written 
Warning changed to Final 
Written Warning, appeals 
against warning to be made 
within 7 calendar days, section 
added on EAP/Support 
Services and First Contact 
removed 

1.2 Kiran Hans October 2023 Updated contents page, flow 
chart re suspensions.  Changed 
Senior Management and 
Corporate Management to 
Leadership Team.  Streamlined 
to reflects current practice and 
taken out counselling as this is 
done through EAP. 

    
    

 

 

Name of Policy Disciplinary Policy & Procedure 
Person/posts responsible Strategic HR Manager  
Date approved/adopted November 2023 
Approved by Employment Committee 
Review Date November 2025 

 
 

Page 45 of 82



 
 

Disciplinary Policy and Procedure 
 

 
Index      Page 
 
 Disciplinary Procedure Quick Reference Flowchart 1 
 
1. Policy Statement 2 
2. Scope 2 
3. Principles 2 
4. Responsibilities 2 
5. Informal Disciplinary Procedure 3 
6. Formal Disciplinary Procedure 3 
7. Suspension 4 
8. Investigation 5 
9. Right to be accompanied 6 
10. Prior to the disciplinary hearing 6 
11. Disciplinary hearing 7 
12. Decision 8 
13. Disciplinary action 8 
14. Time limit for warnings 9 
15. Appeals 9 
16. Special circumstances 10 
17. Consideration of expired disciplinary warnings 10 
18. Links to other procedures 10 
19. Records 11 
20. Advice and support 11 
 
Appendix 1 – Disciplinary Rules 12 
 
A separate document is available on the HR Intranet page – Managers Disciplinary Policy and 
Procedure Toolkit. 
 

Page 46 of 82



Disciplinary Procedure Quick Reference Flowchart 
 

When a Manager becomes aware of an employee’s alleged misconduct, the seriousness of the 
claim dictates how it is to be dealt with. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A disciplinary hearing will be held to decide if there has been a breach of conduct and the 
disciplinary action that may be taken.  It will also give the employee or their representative the 
opportunity to present their side of the situation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note this is only a quick reference guide.  For 
further details and information please read the 
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure. 

 

Minor Misconduct
This will be dealt with informally, 
either in supervision or a 
separate discussion.  A written 
management instruction may be 
issued.  If a satisfactory 
explanation is not evident then 
the issue will be dealt with under 
the formal disciplinary 
procedure.

Serious Misconduct
If the breach of conduct is too 
serious to be dealt with 
informally then the formal 
disciplinary procedure should 
be followed.

If an employee does not 
respond appropriately to 
informal action, begin the 
Formal Disciplinary 
Procedure.

The employee maybe 
suspended if following a risk 
assessment, it appears that it is 
in the best interests of the 
Council or the employee.

The employee maybe suspended if 
following a risk assessment, it 
appears that it is in the best 
interests of the Council or the 
employee.A Written Management 

Instruction will summarise 
what has been discussed.  
They will remain valid for 
12 months.  They are part 
of the informal stage and 
failure to comply will result 
in formal action.

If there are grounds for 
believing that a breach of 
conduct had occurred.  
Formal Disciplinary action is 
required.

If there are no 
grounds for 
believing that a 
breach of conduct 
has occurred, the 
procedure is 
concluded.

If there are 
grounds for 
believing there has 
been a breach but 
of a minor or less 
serious nature, this 
should be dealt 
with informally

A Final written warning is issued when 
there is:

- A further breach of conduct whilst 
a first written warning is still 
current; or

- A breach of conduct is so serious it 
cannot be tolerated a second time 
but is not serious enough to 
warrant a dismissal.

- An act of gross misconduct is 
found but exceptional mitigating 
circumstances are taken into 
account.

A first written warning is 
issued where there has been 
a repeated minor misconduct 
or a breach of conduct of a 
more serious nature, which 
does not justify a final written 
warning or dismissal.

An employee may be 
dismissed with notice if they 
are subject to a first or final 
and there is a further act of 
gross misconduct; or without 
notice, summarily dismissed, 
if gross misconduct is found 
and there are no mitigating 
circumstances to justify a 
lesser penalty.

All employees who have 
received a formal disciplinary 
warning have the right to 
appeal.

Employees who have been 
dismissed will have a right of 
appeal in line with the 
Council’s Appeals Against 
Dismissal Policy.

Page 47 of 82



 Policy Statement 
 
1.1 Huntingdonshire District Council is committed to the effective management of 

conduct at work to ensure the efficient provision of services and the safety and well-
being of employees and the general public. 

 
1.2 The disciplinary procedure provides managers with a framework to address alleged 

breaches of expected standards of conduct as detailed in the Disciplinary Rules.  See 
Appendix One for the Disciplinary Rules  

 
 Scope 
 
1.1 This policy applies to all Council employees, except Statutory Officers (Head of Paid 

Service, Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer), where separate arrangements 
apply as detailed in the Chief Officers constitution. 

 
1.2 For employees subject to the probation period, this policy does not apply, unless in 

cases of gross misconduct or gross incompetence.  Other incidents of misconduct 
that arise during the probation period will be addressed using the probation policy. 

 
 Principles 
 
1.3 This policy is based on the concepts of ‘natural justice’ meaning all staff will be 

treated fairly and without bias. 
 
 Employees can expect: 
 

 To be informed of the complaint against them, as soon as is practicable, and to 
be given an opportunity to state their case before decisions are reached; 

 No disciplinary action to be taken until reasonable efforts have been taken to 
establish the facts; 

 To be notified of their right to be accompanied and/or represented at all formal 
stages of the process (except when being suspended); 

 This procedure to be applied fairly in all instances and for all disciplinary matters 
to be heard in a calm and objective manner with the outcome being both fair and 
equitable. 

 
 Responsibilities 
 
4.1 Managers must 
 

 Ensure all employees are made aware of the expected standards of behaviour 
as specified in the Disciplinary Rules..  To do this a manager must provide 
appropriate induction, supervision and training. 

 Ensure all employees are made aware of any service specific rules or practices, 
for example sickness reporting deadlines for shift workers. 

 Ensure service specific rules are reviewed regularly and any necessary changes 
communicated. 
 

 

Page 48 of 82



1.2 Employees must 
 

 Comply with the Disciplinary Rules.  Any local rules that apply to their role will be 
explained to the employee by his/her line manager. 

 Ask for clarification if unsure what standards of conduct are expected. 
 Co-operate fully in any disciplinary investigation. 

 
 Informal disciplinary procedure 
 
1.3 Cases of minor misconduct should be dealt with informally.  A line manager should 

discuss the issue informally with the employee as it arises either in a supervision 
session or a separate discussion.  This is part of the normal day-to-day management 
and does not form part of the formal disciplinary procedure. 

 
 The manager needs to set out the concerns, outline how the expected standards are 

not being met, and remind the employee of the standard of conduct required.  The 
manager should explain that if a satisfactory explanation is not evident the issue is 
likely to be considered under the formal disciplinary procedure. 

 
1.4 Written management instructions 
 
 To avoid any differences in interpretation the manager should consider issuing the 

employee with a written management instruction, this summarises what has been 
discussed.  Management instructions do not constitute a formal written warning and 
are not part of the formal disciplinary procedure. 

 
 Management instructions should be set out in writing.  An email is acceptable 

providing it clearly states that it is a written management instruction.  All management 
instructions should state that the letter/email constitutes the informal stage of the 
disciplinary procedure and that failure to comply may result in formal disciplinary 
action. 

 
 The employee will be sent a copy of the management instruction and a copy should 

be kept on the employee’s file. Copies of written management instructions or notes of 
informal discussions may be referred to in a subsequent disciplinary hearing, but only 
if they are relevant and current i.e., they have been written in the 12 months prior to 
an issue recurring. 

 
 Formal disciplinary procedure 
 
6.1 This will be applied where the employee does not respond appropriately to informal 

action or the line manager believes that a breach of conduct may have occurred that 
is too serious to be dealt with informally. 

 
 The table below outlines details about conducting disciplinary meetings in line with 

the procedure: 
 

Employee 
Group 

 Investigations Disciplinary 
Hearings  

Appeal 
(excluding 
dismissal) 

Appeal 
against 
dismissal 

Grades 
A – F 

The employee’s 
Line Manager or 

A Manager** 
or Senior 
Leadership Team 

Senior 
Leadership 
Team 

As outlined in 
the Appeals 
Against 

Page 49 of 82



designated officer 
* 

Dismissal 
Policy 

Employee 
Group 

 Investigations Disciplinary 
Hearings  

Appeal 
(excluding 
dismissal) 

Appeal 
against 
dismissal 

Grades 
G-I 

Member of Senior 
Leadership Team 
or designated 
officer * 

Member of 
Corporate 
Leadership Team 
or designated 
officer* 

Member of 
Corporate 
Leadership 
Team  

As outlined in 
the Appeals 
Against 
Dismissal 
Policy 

Grade SM A member of 
Corporate 
Leadership Team 
or designated 
officer** 

Member of 
Corporate 
Leadership Team  

Appeals Panel 
as detailed in 
the Council’s 
Constitution  

Appeals Panel 
as detailed in 
the Council’s 
Constitution 

Grades AD 
& MD 

As detailed in the Council’s Constitution 

 
* A Designated Officer is an employee who will be requested to carry out investigations 

on behalf of a member of Senior Leadership Team 
 

** A Manager defined in this instance is responsible for an activity and employees and 
reports directly to a member of Senior Leadership Team. 

 
 Suspension 
 
7.1 In certain situations, it will be necessary to suspend an employee from duty on full 

pay.  A decision to suspend will be taken following appropriate consideration of the 
nature of the allegation, appropriate consideration of the risks involved, consideration 
of alternatives where appropriate and consultation with HR where possible.  
Suspension is not disciplinary action, but a precautionary measure designed to 
protect the Council’s interests and the employee, whilst allowing time for a thorough 
investigation to be undertaken.  Suspension is not, and will not be, seen as an 
assumption of guilt or a disciplinary sanction. 

 
7.2 An employee will be suspended from work at the earliest opportunity in cases where: 
 

 It is considered to be in the best interests of the Council and/or the employee for 
him/her not to be at work during an investigation; 

 
7.3 An employee does not have the right to prior notice that he/she is to be suspended, 

to be represented/ accompanied when being suspended or to appeal against the 
decision to suspend. 

 
7.4 The decision to suspend should be taken and carried out as follows: 
 

Employee Group Responsible for Suspension 
Grades A – F Member of Senior Leadership Team or 

Duty Officer, if out of hours 
Grades G – I Member of the Corporate Leadership Team 

or Duty Officer, if out of hours 
Senior Leadership Team and 
Statutory Officers 

Senior Officers Panel*** 

Page 50 of 82



 *** Senior Officers Panel is a member body as defined in the Constitution 
 
 With the exception of members of Senior Leadership Team and Statutory Officers, or 

in situations where the level of management is not available, suspension may be 
carried out by the most senior manager on duty at the site when the allegation is 
reported/comes to light, or by a member of the relevant service management team 
but only after the decision to suspend has been taken by a member of the Corporate 
or Senior Leadership Team or Duty Officer, if out of hours.  Please see Manager’s 
Toolkit for further details of how to contact the Duty Officer. 

 
7.5 A suspension will only be carried out after careful consideration.  Every effort will be 

made to conduct an investigation as soon as possible and minimise the length of the 
suspension. The details of the suspension will be confirmed in writing within 7 
calendar days of the suspension meeting.  Further information on suspensions is 
available in the toolkit. 

 
7.6 If the matter is subject to a police investigation, the Council reserves the right to 

continue with the disciplinary process and not await the outcome of the police 
investigation. 

 
 Investigation 
 
The investigation will be confined to establishing the facts of the case with the employee 
concerned and other persons as felt appropriate.  The purpose of the investigations is to 
gather information to help substantiate those facts and ultimately to determine whether there 
are sufficient grounds to hold a disciplinary hearing. 
 
8.1 Investigation process 
 
8.1.1 The investigation should be carried out by the employee’s line manager or another 

Manager or Designated Officer (as outlined in section 6.1).  Written records of the 
investigation will be kept for later reference. 

 
8.1.2 The employee will be given at least 24 hours verbal notice of an investigation 

meeting and will be informed of the allegations against him/her.  Although there is no 
legal right to representation at the investigation stage, HDC allows employees to be 
accompanied by a member of the Employee Representative Group (ERG), a Union 
representative or work colleague.  In most cases the investigation meeting will go 
ahead if a representative is unavailable. The investigation is not a disciplinary 
hearing.  In certain cases, there may have to be more than one investigation, e.g., to 
follow up on evidence obtained from other witnesses or to clarify certain points. 

 
8.1.3 Employees are required to attend investigations and hearings and to co-operate with 

the fact finding process. 
 
8.1.4 The investigating manager may be assisted by a member of the HR team in an 

investigation.  In certain cases, more than one person may need to assist the 
investigating manager e.g., financial, legal, IT cases where specialist knowledge is 
required. 

 
8.1.5 All parties will ensure that confidentiality is maintained at all times, and that the name 

of the employee involved will remain anonymous wherever possible.  Any breaches 
of confidentiality may lead to disciplinary action. 

 

Page 51 of 82



8.1.6 Witnesses may be employees or non-employees.  In exceptional circumstances, with 
the prior agreement of the investigation manager, a witness may be accompanied by 
a member of the ERG, Union representative or work colleague who will provide moral 
support only.  An employee is responsible for arranging his/her own witnesses and 
meeting any associated costs. 

 
8.2 Outcome of investigation 
 
8.2.1 The investigating manager may conclude, after consultation with a member of the HR 

team, that there are: 
 

 No grounds for believing that a breach of conduct has occurred, therefore the 
disciplinary procedure will be concluded; OR 

 Grounds for believing that a breach of conduct has occurred but that it is of a 
minor or less serious nature than originally believed, in which case the formal 
disciplinary process will end and the matter dealt with by informal action, i.e., day 
to day management and/or by issuing a written management instruction; OR 

 Grounds for believing that a breach of conduct has occurred and that formal 
disciplinary action may be necessary, therefore a disciplinary hearing should be 
arranged. 

 
8.2.2 Guidance on how to undertake an investigation is available in the toolkit. 
 
 Right to be accompanied 
 
9.1 The employee has the right to be accompanied and/or represented at any stage of 

the formal disciplinary procedure, except when being suspended.  Employees may 
be accompanied by a member of the ERG, a trade union representative, or a work 
colleague of their choosing.  The employee must decide whether their companion will 
act as a representative or if he/she will act as a companion. 

 
9.2 A representative is allowed to address the hearing to make the employee’s case, 

sum up that case and respond on the employee’s behalf.  He/she can also confer 
with the employee during the hearing.  However, a representative is not permitted to 
answer questions on behalf of the employee and must not prevent the employer from 
explaining their case or prevent any party making their contribution 

 
9.3 The choice of companion should be reasonable given the circumstances of the case - 

it would not be reasonable to be accompanied by a colleague whose presence would 
prejudice the hearing or who might have a conflict of interest and this will not be 
permitted.  It is the responsibility of the employee to arrange his/her companion and 
to meet any associated costs. 

 
9.4 At least 4 calendar days before the hearing, the employee should inform HR of who 

he/she has chosen as a representative/companion. 
 
 Prior to the disciplinary hearing 
 
10.1 The employee will be given a minimum of 10 calendar days written notice of the 

hearing.  This may be varied by mutual agreement but must not be less than 7 
calendar days. 

 

Page 52 of 82



10.1.1 Details of any evidence to be relied upon/witnesses to be called will be sent to the 
employee. 

 
10.1.2 The employee has the right to refer to written information and call witnesses at the 

hearing, details must be submitted by the employee at least four calendar days 
before the hearing. 

 
 
 Disciplinary hearing 
 
1.5 Process: The disciplinary hearing will be conducted by an authorised manager who 

has not played any part in the investigation.  The chair will be supported by a 
member of the HR team.  

 
1.6 Witnesses: Witnesses may be employees or non-employees.  In exceptional 

circumstances, with the prior agreement of the chair, a witness may be accompanied 
by an independent person of his/her choice who will provide moral support only.  An 
employee is responsible for arranging his/her own witnesses and meeting any 
associated costs 

 
1.7 New evidence: If new evidence (written information and/or witnesses) is introduced at 

the disciplinary hearing the reasons why the details were not submitted in advance of 
the hearing must be explained.  If new evidence is presented, the chair conducting 
the hearing will take a view on whether to allow it and an adjournment may be 
necessary to allow time for consideration and/or further investigation. 

 
11.4 Employees are expected to attend a disciplinary hearing.  If the employee is unable 

to attend the disciplinary hearing, he/she must inform the relevant investigating 
manager. 

 
11.4.1  Where an employee has unavoidably been unable to attend the disciplinary hearing 

the employee will be given reasonable notice of a second hearing date.  Hearings will 
also be rearranged in situations where the reason for the failure to attend was 
unforeseeable e.g., sudden illness. 

 
11.4.2  If the employee is unable to attend the reconvened hearing it will normally proceed in 

his/her absence but with his/her representative being given the opportunity to present 
the employee’s case on his/her behalf.  In such cases it will also be possible for the 
chair to accept for consideration a written statement from the employee or his/her 
representative. 

 
11.4.3 The only time when the above process will not apply is where an employee confirms 

to the investigating manager that he/she has no intention of attending any disciplinary 
hearing.  In this situation, the hearing will usually proceed in the employee’s absence. 

 
11.4.4 If the employee’s representative/companion cannot attend on a proposed date a 

further date, no more than 10 calendar days after the date originally proposed will be 
suggested.  This 10 calendar day time limit may be extended by mutual agreement.  
A hearing will usually only be rescheduled once. 

 
 Decision 
 
1.8 The chair of the hearing will consider all of the evidence presented and then decide if 

there has been: 

Page 53 of 82



 
 No breach of conduct and that the disciplinary procedure should be concluded; 

OR 
 A breach of conduct, but it is not serious enough to warrant formal disciplinary 

action and/or mitigating circumstances have been taken into account and it can 
be dealt with appropriately by informal action, e.g., by day to day management 
and/or by issuing written management instructions; OR 

 A breach of conduct which is sufficiently serious to warrant formal disciplinary 
action. 

 
12.2 The decision of the Chair conducting the hearing will normally be given to the 

employee verbally at the end of the hearing – he/she will confirm the outcome of the 
disciplinary hearing in writing within 7 calendar days of the hearing. 

 
 Disciplinary action 
 
1.9 There are three levels of disciplinary action.  The level of disciplinary action issued 

will depend on the seriousness of the misconduct and whether the employee is 
subject to a current warning for misconduct. 

 
1.10 First written warning 
 
 Issued where there has been a repeated minor misconduct OR a breach of conduct 

of a more serious nature, which does not justify a final written warning or dismissal. 
 
1.11 Final written warning 
 
 Issued where: 

 There is a further breach of conduct whilst a first written warning is still current; 
OR 

 A breach of conduct is found to be of such a serious nature that it cannot be 
tolerated a second time, but is not serious enough to be categorised as gross 
misconduct; OR 

 An act of gross misconduct is found, but exceptional mitigating circumstances 
are taken into account  

 
1.12 Dismissal 
 
 An employee may be dismissed: 

 With notice if he/she is subject to a final or first written warning and a further act 
of misconduct is found (contractual notice may be paid in lieu); OR 

 Without notice (summarily) if gross misconduct is found and there are no 
mitigating circumstances to justify a lesser penalty. 

 
13.4.1 Where an employee has been dismissed from a post working with children or 

vulnerable adults, the dismissal letter will also confirm whether HR will convey the 
details of the employee’s dismissal to the appropriate authorities, e.g., for possible 
inclusion on the Children’s or Adults Barred Lists as appropriate, or other statutory 
bodies such as Health and Care Professions Council.  The decision to convey 
information will be made after full consideration of the facts. 

 

Page 54 of 82



1.13 Other action 
 

HDC reserve the right to take other action in conjunction with formal disciplinary 
action, e.g., to transfer the employee to another post.  This must be in consultation 
with a member of the HR team to ensure that any action taken is reasonable and will 
be reflected in the disciplinary outcome letter. 
 

 Time limits for warnings 
 
1.14 Written Management Instructions do not constitute a formal written warning and are 

not part of the formal disciplinary procedure.  They are relevant and current for a 
period of 12 months. 

 
14.1.1 Copies of written management instructions or notes of informal discussions may be 

referred to in a subsequent disciplinary hearing, but only if they are relevant and 
current i.e., they have been written in the 12 months prior to an issue recurring. 

 
14.2 Formal warnings (first and final written warnings) remain current for 12 months.  Any 

disciplinary action taken should be disregarded after the specified period of 
satisfactory conduct or performance. 

 
14.2.1 There may be occasions where an employee’s conduct is satisfactory throughout the 

period the warning is in force, only to lapse very soon thereafter.  Where a pattern 
emerges and/or there is evidence of abuse, the employee’s disciplinary record should 
be borne in mind. 

 
14.3 If an employee is absent from work for an extended period the time limit for warnings 

will be extended by the period of absence. 
 
 Appeals 
 
15.1 All employees who have received a formal disciplinary warning have a right of appeal 

to the relevant person as detailed in the outcome letter.  This appeal must be made in 
writing within 7 calendar days after receiving the written outcome of the disciplinary 
hearing. 

 
15.2 The appeal must state the grounds for appeal i.e., the basis on which they say the 

result of the disciplinary was wrong or that the sanction as a result was inappropriate. 
 
15.3 As far as is reasonably practicable, an appeal meeting will be held by the next level 

of management not involved in the original hearing, within 14 calendar days or a 
mutually agreed date following the receipt of the appeal in writing. 

 
15.4 At the appeal hearing the grounds of appeal will be discussed and the manager 

hearing the appeal will make a decision based on all representations, together with 
any subsequent facts that have come to light.  

 
15.5 The person dealing with the appeal has the authority to: 
 

 Uphold the appeal, i.e., to find the case not proven; 
 Issue a lesser level of disciplinary action; or 
 Dismiss the appeal, i.e., the original disciplinary warning remains in force. 

 

Page 55 of 82



15.6 Employees who have been dismissed will have a right of appeal in line with the 
Appeals against Dismissal Policy. 

 
 
 Special circumstances 
 
1.15 Some disciplinary issues need to be treated in a particular way, for example: 
 

 AWOL (Absent without authorised leave) 
 Internet/IT cases 
 Financial irregularities or potential fraud  
 Child protection cases 
 Allegations relating to vulnerable adults 
 Cases involving a partner organisation 
 Where several employees are involved 
 Multiple contracts 
 Offences outside of work 
 

 Further guidance can be found in the Managers’ Disciplinary Toolkit.  In all these 
cases advice should be sought from the HR Team. 

 
 Consideration of expired disciplinary warnings 
 
17.1 All written warnings expire after 12 months; with the exception of employees who are 

on long term absence for the period of the warning (see section 14.3).  If a further 
breach of conduct occurs while a disciplinary warning is still current the disciplinary 
procedure may be escalated to the next stage. 

 
 Links to other procedures 
 
1.1 Work performance: It is sometimes difficult to distinguish between misconduct and 

work performance issues.  Cases of misconduct are dealt with under the disciplinary 
procedure, and cases of genuine lack of capability should be dealt with under the 
Managing Employee Performance Policy.  If it is not clear whether an issue is one of 
conduct or capability, the investigation process should establish this.  Managers may 
also wish to discuss this with a member of the HR team. 

 
1.2 Ill health: The disciplinary procedure and sickness absence policies can run in 

parallel i.e., one does not take precedence over the other.  Advice should be sought 
from the HR Team in these situations. 

 
1.3 Grievance: If an employee raises a grievance during the disciplinary process, HR 

advice should be sought to determine whether the disciplinary process should be 
temporarily suspended in order to deal with the grievance.  However, in the majority 
of situations, the grievance will not postpone any disciplinary action and therefore it 
may be appropriate to deal with both issues concurrently. 

 
 Records 
 
19.1 The HR Team will maintain on an employee’s personal file brief details of any 

disciplinary investigation and the letter confirming any formal disciplinary action.  
They will also keep on file a record of any management instructions issued. 

Page 56 of 82



 Advice and Support 
 
20.1 The Disciplinary Toolkit will support managers to proactively manage conduct issues.  

Additional advice for managers is available from the HR Team. 
 
20.2.1 There is also support available through an Employee Assistance Programme, (EAP) 

service to ensure the welfare and performance of an employee is dealt with in a 
supportive and positive manner.  If you need further information on the Counselling or 
support service please contact the HR Team. The details of your referral will remain 
confidential to the HR team. 

 
20.3 It may be appropriate for certain matters to be dealt with by way of mediation, 

depending on the nature of the disciplinary.  This involves the appointment of a third-
party mediator arranged by the HR Team, after the investigating manager has 
discussed the disciplinary matter with all those involved and sought to facilitate an 
outcome.  Mediation will only be used if all parties involved in the disciplinary agree. 

 
20.4 Should any aspect of the disciplinary process cause difficulty because of a disability, 

language barriers or other difficulties, the Council will aim to support with the 
necessary help or assistance.  Please contact the HR Team if additional support is 
required. 

 

Page 57 of 82



Appendix 1 
 

Disciplinary Rules 
 
1.0 Summary 
 
1.1 The Council has Key Values and Behaviours in which all employees should adhere 

to.  In circumstances where these are breached disciplinary action will be taken.  The 
following rules are set out to guide employees on the areas deemed as misconduct 
or gross misconduct. 

 
1.2 The lists of behaviour that may be seen as misconduct or gross misconduct set out 

below are neither exclusive nor exhaustive, there may be other matters of a similar 
nature which will constitute either misconduct or gross misconduct.  There may be 
occasions where matters listed as misconduct may be regarded as gross misconduct 
depending upon the nature and seniority of the post or the frequency, impact or 
severity of the breach. 

 
2.0 Misconduct 
 
2.1 Misconduct is of a degree less serious than that warranting dismissal on the first 

occasion or without previous warning but that will nevertheless lead to dismissal if 
persistent.  Some serious acts of misconduct might justify omitting the first stage 
(management instruction) moving directly to issuing a written/final warning in the first 
instance if there is not a satisfactory explanation.  Only when the disciplinary 
procedure has been exhausted will misconduct lead to dismissal unless there are 
mitigating circumstances. 

 
2.2 Matters that the Council views as amounting to misconduct include (but are not 

limited to): 
 
2.2.1 Absenteeism and Lateness: 

 Failure to remain at work during working hours without permission or sufficient 
cause for absence. 

 Frequent failure to attend work punctually (or in accordance with the flexitime 
scheme, where appropriate). 

 Failure to notify your Line Manager immediately or as soon as reasonably 
practicable, when absent due to sickness. 

 Failure to provide medical certificates for absence longer than seven days or 
when requested by management. 

 Failure to comply with the rules of the Sickness Absence Policy. 
 
2.2.2 Neglect of duty: 

 Failure to wear protective clothing, use protective equipment or adopt safe 
working practices where required to by the law or management. 

 Negligent use of Council property in such a way as is likely to cause serious 
damage, loss or harm. 

 Failure to discharge, without sufficient cause, the obligations which the statute of 
the contract of employment places on the employee. 

 Insubordination. 
 Failure to follow the Council’s agreed policies and procedures (e.g., accounting 

instructions). 
 Failure to work to acceptable standards of conduct or performance. 

Page 58 of 82



 Neglect of health i.e., when an employee, without sufficient cause, neglects to 
carry out any instructions of a medical officer appointed by the Council or, while 
absent from duty on account of sickness commits any act or adopts any conduct 
calculated to delay a return to duty. 

 
2.2.3 Making unauthorised use of the Council’s communication network and electronic 

systems. 
 
2.2.4 Smoking in a smoke free premises or vehicle (as defined by legislation). 
 
2.2.5 Failure to report any loss or damage to any property issued to or used by the 

employee or to notify the appropriate officer of accidents occurring while driving a 
Council maintained vehicle. 

 
2.2.6 Abusive behaviour and/or offensive language which arises directly out of or in 

connection with work and which is directed at Councillors, Senior Officers, managers, 
colleagues or members of the public. 

 
2.2.7 Victimisation of other employees in the course of employment. 
 
2.2.8 Undertaking additional employment outside normal working hours which would be in 

conflict with the functions of the Council or detrimental to the work to be performed as 
an employee of the Council. 

 
2.2.9 Knowingly aiding and abetting an act of misconduct. 
 
3.0 Gross Misconduct 
 
3.1 Rules under the heading Gross Misconduct are matters that will be viewed very 

seriously by the Council and, if the allegation(s) are found on the balance of 
probability proven, may lead to dismissal. 

 
3.2 Gross misconduct is the commission of an act of such a serious and fundamental 

nature which renders it inadvisable for an employee to be allowed to remain at work.  
If an employee is suspected of committing an act of gross misconduct, suspension 
from work on full pay pending investigation will be considered. 

 
3.3 If after full investigation it is decided that an employee has committed an act of gross 

misconduct or if the act is admitted by an employee, the Council will be entitled to 
terminate their contract of employment without notice or pay in lieu of notice unless 
there are mitigating circumstances. 

 
3.4 Matters that the Council views as amounting to gross misconduct include (but are not 

limited to): 
 
3.4.1 Dishonesty associated with the place of work or job being undertaken: 
 

 Theft of Council, Council Contractor, client or employee property or deliberate 
damage to such property. 

 Deliberate falsification of timesheets, expense claims or other records for 
financial gain or to gain advantage to others. 

 Demanding or accepting monies or other consideration as a bribe for the use of 
Council property, provision of Council services, placing of Council 
orders/contracts or the showing of favour on behalf of the Council. 

Page 59 of 82



 Acceptance of any valuable gift or reward, other than the proper remuneration for 
the performance of official duties unless specifically approved by the Monitoring 
Officer or authorised representative or regarded as appropriate in the 
circumstances. 

 Falsification of qualifications which are a stated requirement of employment or 
which results in financial gain. 

 Misuse of the Council’s property or the Council’s name or bringing the name into 
serious disrepute. 

 
3.4.2 Deliberate refusal to carry out reasonable, lawful and safe instructions or the normal 

agreed duties of an employee’s job. 
 
3.4.3 Gross negligence in failing to attend to, or carry out, the normal duties of the job. 
 
3.4.4 Serious breach of the Council’s rules: 
 

 Wilful serious infringements of safety rules or other wilfully negligent actions 
which seriously place the health and safety of the employee, other employees or 
other persons / public in danger. 

 Driving a Council vehicle whilst on Council business in a reckless manner 
leading to otherwise avoidable serious injury or death of other persons. 

 Breaches of the Council’s IT, E-Mail and Internet policies and procedures. 
 Breaches of the Code of Procurement and Financial Management rules. 
 Breaches of the Drug and Alcohol Policy. 

 
3.4.5 Wilful unauthorised disclosure or misuse of information classified as strictly 

confidential which could be harmful to the Council, its clients or employees who in the 
course of duty have access to information e.g., personal information on 
employees/failure to safeguard confidential information. 

 
3.4.6 Acts of violence whether verbal, physical or vandalism in the course of employment 

causing: 
 

 Malicious damage to Council, Council contractor, client or employee property. 
 Use of physical force against Council members, employees or members of the 

public other than in self-defence. 
 Abusive or threatening behaviour or use of offensive language directed at 

another employee, Council Member or a member of the public. 
 
3.4.7 Sexual misconduct at work whether criminal or not. 
 
3.4.8 Off duty misconduct – the conviction for, or admission of offences that will have a 

direct bearing on the employee’s ability to carry out their duties. 
 
3.4.9 Knowingly aiding and abetting an act of gross misconduct. 
 
3.4.10 Unlawful discrimination against other employees or members of the public in the 

course of employment on the grounds of sex, sexual orientation, race, age, disability, 
religion or belief, including any behaviour that may be classed as bullying and 
harassment, against any person whilst at work. 

 
3.4.11 The displaying, circulation or copying of material deemed to be offensive, either 

electronically or otherwise. 
 

Page 60 of 82



3.4.12 Persistent unauthorised absence from work, including frequent lateness without 
acceptable explanation or persistent failure to comply with the Council’s Policies. 

 
3.4.13 Serious insubordination. 
 
 
  

Page 61 of 82



 
 
 
Appendix 3 
 

Sickness Absence and 
Attendance Policy 

 
Version 1.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Version Control 
Version Author Date Changes 
1.1 Kiran Hans September 2022 Date stamp 

Clarified working re OH - using 
where required 

1.2 Kiran Hans November 2023 Date stamp, clarification on some 
wording. 
 

    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of Policy Sickness Absence and Attendance Policy 
Person/posts responsible Strategic HR Manager 
Date approved/adopted 15th September 2016 / adopted 01 November 2016 amended 8 

March 2019 to remove reference to using Action Improvement Plan 
form. 
Reviewed 22nd November 2022/adopted 22 November 2022 
Reviewed October 2023 

Approved by Employment Committee 
Review Date November 2025 

Page 62 of 82



 
 

 

Huntingdonshire District Council is committed to improving the health, well-
being and attendance of all employees. We aim to assist all employees to 
remain fit to work and provide support to help those employees experiencing 
heath issues, which impact on their ability to work. In doing so, we aim to 
improve the long term health and productivity of Huntingdonshire District 
Council. We value the contribution our employees make to our success in 
providing services to the local community. 

 

 

Short-Term and Intermittent absence - definition 
 Intermittent absences are periods of sickness absence that are not 

continuous and are normally short-term i.e., less than 28 calendar 
days 

 Short term absence can be self-certified and/ or covered by a medical 
statement, depending on the length of each occurrence, and may be for 
unrelated medical causes 

 
Long term absence - definition 

 Long term absence is defined as continuous sickness absence lasting, 
or expected to last, for more than 28 calendar days 

 
Triggers 
Absence must be reviewed when any of the following triggers are reached: 

 8 working days in a 12 month rolling period 
 3 or more instances in a 3 month rolling period (including half days) 
 6 or more instances in a 12 month rolling period (including half days) 
 28 calendar days absence 
 patterns of absence causing concern e.g., repeat days of the week 

 

 

There are three stages in the policy designed to support employees to 
improve their attendance whilst balancing the needs of the service and 
teams. 

 
Action Stage One 
Where an absence trigger has been met, this generally indicates that the level 
and impact of absence is of concern, therefore an Action Stage One Absence 
Review meeting will be held. The meeting will explore the absence record and 
help identify whether any specific support may be required. 

 
The purpose of the Action Stage One Absence Review meeting is to positively 
and constructively discuss the absence and its impact and help the employee 
improve and sustain attendance to expected standards. 

 
Potential outcomes following Action Stage One: 

 Attendance has improved to the required level so no further action 

Sickness Absence and Attendance 
Policy

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Absence Triggers

3.0 Stages in the policy

Page 63 of 82



taken. If an absence trigger is reached in the next 12 months, this will 
usually be dealt with at an Action Stage Two meeting. 

 Attendance has not improved to the required level and the employee moves to 
Action Stage Two. 

Please see Sickness Absences and Attendance Procedure for further details. 
Action Stage Two 
If the Action Stage One process has not been successful then an Action 
Stage Two meeting will be held. Before moving to Action Stage Two, 
managers will have taken sufficient reasonable action and provided support 
for the employee e.g., where required seek occupational health advice, 
explore reasonable adjustments and monitor absence etc. 

 
Potential outcomes following Action Stage Two: 
• Attendance has improved to the required level so no further action 

taken. If an absence trigger is reached in the next 12 months, this will 
usually be dealt with at an Action Stage Three meeting. 

• Attendance has not improved to the required level and the employee moves to 
Action Stage Three 

 
Please see Sickness Absence and Attendance Procedure for further details. 

 
Action Stage Three 
If the Action Stage Two process has not been successful then an Action Stage 
Three meeting will be held. Again, before moving to Action Stage Three a 
manager needs to evidence that sufficient reasonable action and support has 
been provided. 

 
Potential outcomes of Action Stage Three: 
• Attendance has improved to the required level so no further action 

taken. If an absence trigger is reached again in the next 12 months, 
this will usually be dealt with at a further Action Stage Three meeting. 

• Attendance has not improved to the required level, the employee may 
be dismissed or referred to a further Action Stage Two or Action Stage 
Three meeting as determined by the facts of the case. 

 
In exceptional circumstances it is possible to move from Action Stage One to Action Stage 
Three. 
Please see Sickness Absence and Attendance Procedure for further details (18.1). 

 
 
  

Page 64 of 82



Appendix 4. 

   

 

Volunteer Policy 
Version 1.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version Control 
Version Author Date Changes 
1.1 Nicki Bane August 

2022 
Version control added 

1.2 Kiran Hans October 
2023 

Review – only change is date stamp 

    
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Policy Volunteer Policy 
Person/posts responsible Strategic HR Manager 
Date approved/adopted 22 November 2023 
Approved by Employee Committee 
Review Date November 2025 

Page 65 of 82



1.0 Introduction 

The Council seeks and recruits a significant number of volunteers who wish to gain 
experience or provide practical assistance across all services provided by 
Huntingdonshire District Council.  This policy recognises the valuable contribution of 
our volunteers and provides consistent standards for volunteering opportunities with 
the Council. 
 
The Council recognises that by involving volunteers we can improve our 
engagement with and understanding of the communities we serve.  It is 
acknowledged that volunteers can offer fresh perspectives on Council service 
delivery. 
 
There are a range of reasons why people volunteer.  Volunteering can be seen as a 
way to improve employment prospects and gain new skills, knowledge and 
experience.  People may see volunteering as a way to increase their self-esteem, to 
meet new people and to get to know the local community.  Many people volunteer 
because they want to make a difference to the lives of others and the community that 
they live in.   
 
2.0 Principles 

 
The Council will undertake the recruitment and supervision of volunteers in 
accordance with the following principles: 

 ensuring the safety of service users and volunteers 

 ensuring appropriate insurance cover is in place for all volunteers 

 treating volunteers fairly and consistently 

 supporting and developing the volunteer’s role 

 engaging volunteers to complement the work of paid employees. The Council 
will not engage a volunteer as a like for like replacement of a paid employee. 

 
Volunteers will be distinct from paid employees in the following ways: 

 A volunteer will be provided with a role description, not a job description 

 Volunteers are encouraged to commit to a certain number of hours or duration 
of placement, but they are not obliged to attend 

 Volunteers are not bound by all Council staff policies but are expected to carry 
out their duties in a professional manner. They are specifically required to 
comply with the following policies; Bullying and Harassment, Drug and 
Alcohol, Social Media, Health and Safety, Child Safeguarding and Welfare, 
and Data Protection.   

 Volunteers will not receive any form of payment or benefit in kind 

 

Page 66 of 82



Volunteers will undergo the following: 
 A recruitment interview 
 An induction, including any Health and Safety related information 
 A DBS check (if necessary) 
 Seeking of two references 
 A check of their right to work in the UK 
 Completing an application form 
 Signing a Volunteer Agreement. 

 

  

Page 67 of 82



Appendix 5. 
 
 

 
Redundancy Policy 

Version 1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version Control 
Version Author Date Changes 
1.1 Lisa Morris 

/Shaistha 
Shah 

August 2022 Added front cover for version control - Minor 
typos/ sentence clarity, Staff Council change to 
ERG, removed section on associated policies, 
clarification around Local Government 
Modification Order and commencement of 
employment within 4 weeks. 
 

1.2 Kiran Hans October 2023 Added Employee Representative Group and 
UNISON to 8.6 

    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name of Policy Redundancy Policy 
Person/posts responsible Strategic HR Manager 
Date approved/adopted November 2023 
Approved by Employment Committee 
Review Date November 2025 

  

Page 68 of 82



 
Redundancy Policy 

 
 
1.0 Policy Statement 
 
1.1 Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) strives to create and maintain a 

working environment that is conducive to the achievement of organisational, 
team and individual objectives and promotes effective and harmonious 
working conditions. 

 
1.2 It is the policy of HDC to provide, as far as possible, security of employment 

to avoid the need for compulsory redundancies through careful forward 
planning.  However, it is recognised that the needs of the business may 
change from time to time and there may be circumstances that affect 
security of employment and this may result in redundancies. 

 
1.3 HDC is committed to early and meaningful consultation with affected 

employees both individually and through the Employee Representative 
Group (ERG) and UNISON. 

 
2.0 Employees Covered by this Policy 
 
2.1 The Redundancy Policy applies to all those employed on Huntingdonshire 

District Council’s terms and conditions of employment. 
 
 
4.0 Objectives 
 
4.1 This policy aims to deal with all aspects of redundancy and is to be followed 

where a redundancy situation or the possibility of redundancy arises. The 
objectives of this policy are to: 

 
 provide a transparent framework for which HDC can make necessary 

staffing adjustments within the given economic climate, 
 provide guidance and a process for employees to raise these concerns 

internally and receive feedback on actions taken, 
 reassure employees that they will be protected from victimisation, 

subsequent discrimination or disadvantage for raising concerns. 
 
A glossary of terms can be found in Section 19. 
 
5.0 Responsibilities 
 
5.1 Senior Leadership Team are responsible for ensuring that all aspects of the 

policy and procedure are correctly applied and HR are informed at the first 
available opportunity where proposals may result in redundancy. 

 

Page 69 of 82



5.2 HR are able to provide advice, support and signposting of training as 
appropriate to Chief Officers, Heads of Service, Managers and employees 
involved in situations where the risk of a role, or roles, being made 
redundant has been identified. 

 
 
6.0 What is Redundancy? 

 
6.1  Redundancy is a potentially fair reason for dismissing an employee.  A 

redundancy dismissal arises if: 
 

HDC ceases or intends to cease: 
 providing a service; or 
 providing a service at a particular place where an employee is contracted 

to work; 
OR 
The need has ceased or diminished, or is expected to cease or diminish:   
 for employees to carry out work of a particular kind; or  
 to carry out work of a particular kind at a particular place.   

 
There are four main factors that need to be considered, when deciding if a 
redundancy situation exists: 
 the place of work; 
 the number of employees undertaking work; 
 a reduction in hours; and/or 
 a change in the kind of work.   

 
If there is a change in any of these factors or a combination of these factors 
it is likely that a redundancy situation exists, and further HR advice should be 
sought. 
 

7.0 Setting Redundancy in Context 
 
7.1 The need to alter the number of employees required within the Council can 

arise from: 

 a change in the way a service is provided; 

 a restructuring; or 

 a need to make budget savings. 
 

Early planning and consultation with employees, ERG and UNISON by 
managers can often minimise or eliminate the need for redundancy. For 
example: 

 the fact that it may be necessary to delete a post from the establishment 
does not automatically mean that the post-holder is redundant.  Managers 
should always look at contractual flexibility first; and 

 many changes will create developmental opportunities for staff or will allow 
some increase in the flexibility of work.  In these cases, many employees 

Page 70 of 82



may be happy to agree changes to their working arrangements and 
contracts of employment. 

 7.2 However, if the potential for redundancy is identified, it is important to 
recognise the effect this may have on employees.  It is particularly important, 
therefore to handle redundancy and redeployment discussions with care and 
consideration; and to take all reasonable steps to ensure that decisions 
about redundancy are consistent and fair, and seen to be so. 

 
8.0 Consultation Process 
 
8.1 The law requires collective consultation to take place where the number of 

redundancies being contemplated at the establishment concerned is 20 or 
more and these are planned to take effect within 90 days or less.  In these 
circumstances HDC will always consult with Employee Representative 
Group and UNISON. 

 
8.2 Within HDC ‘the establishment’ is likely to mean the whole of the Council.  

HR advice should therefore be sought as soon as the possibility of 
redundancies is considered, so HR can advise on any other redundancies 
across HDC and determine the length of consultation needed. 

 
8.3 The aim of consultation will be to reach agreement on mitigating the 

consequences of any redundancies, for example: 
 

 methods of seeking alternative employment for those staff at risk of 
redundancy; 

 retraining and development opportunities; and 
 support services including outplacement and counselling. 

8.4 In some circumstances consultation will also establish the application of 
selection criteria where compulsory redundancy as a course of action is 
unavoidable. 

 
8.5 Consultation will be undertaken with the Employee Representative Group 

and UNISON prior to the launch of the formal consultation period. 
 
8.6 The Council will disclose in writing to employees, Employee Representative 

Group and UNISON:- 
 

 the business reason for the proposals; 
 the number and description of employees it is proposing to dismiss as 

redundant; 
 the proposed method of selecting the employees and carrying out the 

redundancies, including the period over which the dismissals will take 
effect; and 

 steps already taken to mitigate the need for redundancies. 
 

Page 71 of 82



8.7 Individual employees may put forward their views through their 
representatives or direct to the managers involved.  Employees may discuss 
any aspect of the proposals in confidence, if they wish, with representatives. 
HR will be available to provide advice on the process to be followed.  If 
required, and where feasible, concerns will be conveyed as part of the formal 
response to the consultation while maintaining confidentiality. 

 
8.8 HDC will consult with employees in any redundancy situation.  No notice of 

compulsory redundancy will be issued prior to completion of the consultation 
process and consultation will commence at the earliest opportunity but no 
later than: 

 
 at least 30 days before the first dismissal takes effect if 20 – 99 

employees are to be made redundant at HDC over a period of 90 days or 
less, or 

 
 at least 45 days before the first dismissal takes effect if 100 or more 

employees are to be made redundant at HDC over a period of 90 days or 
less. 

 
8.9 Employees may choose to be accompanied to any consultation meeting by 

an Employee Representative Group member, a Union representative or a 
work colleague. 

 
8.10 Employees may be at risk of redundancy when employers have 

commenced with a period of formal consultation on a business proposal that 
has implications on employee numbers, structure, or the location in which 
work is currently carried out.  Once at risk of redundancy, employees are 
deemed to have ‘redeployee status’. 

 
8.11 Employees are under notice of redundancy when they have received 

written notification that their employment with HDC will end on a specified 
date and their employment will terminate due to redundancy. 

 
9.0 Redundancy Mitigation 
 
9.1 HDC will take action to ensure that the risk of redundancy is reduced and 

early planning and consultation with the Employee Representative Group 
and UNISON is in place to minimise or prevent the need for redundancy, 
where practicable we will consider the following: 
 changes that create developmental opportunities for employees or will 

allow some increase in the flexibility of work.  In these circumstances 
employees may be happy to agree to changes to their working 
arrangements and contracts of employment, retraining and seeking 
alternative employment with redeployee status. 

 suspension of recruitment within the affected area and areas of potential 
redeployment, 

Page 72 of 82



 reducing employee numbers by natural turnover, retirement, early 
retirement or reducing hours, 

 reducing or eliminating any overtime undertaken, 
 reviewing the employment of sub-contractors and agency staff in the area 

at risk and those of potential redeployment, and 
 seeking applicants for voluntary redundancy where appropriate 

 
10.0 Suitable Alternative Employment 
 
10.1 When HDC has embarked on the redundancy consultation process, suitable 

alternative employment will be considered to reduce the effect.  HDC will 
take all reasonable steps to support employees to seek alternative 
employment where they are at risk of redundancy. 

 
10.2 Where HDC has identified redundancies that may arise from a restructure 

within a service, roles in the reviewed structure may be considered as, in the 
first instance, ‘ring fenced’ to employees at risk or under notice of 
redundancy according to the particular circumstances.  Ring fenced 
arrangements will be set out in the formal consultation documentation. 

 
10.3 Whether alternative employment is suitable will depend on, amongst other 

considerations, the following factors: 
 

 Duties and Qualifications:  The duties and qualification criteria of the 
‘new’ role should be broadly comparable to the previous role. 

 Salary: The grade and benefits of the ‘new’ role should be broadly 
comparable to the previous role. 

 Location: Any change in place of work will be considered in relation to 
travelling time and individual circumstances. 

 Hours of work: An employee’s contractual working hours will be taken 
into account where possible when considering alternative roles. 

10.4 Directors, Heads of Service and Managers involved in the redundancy 
process will, in liaison with HR, determine where an alternative role is 
suitable and this will be set out in the formal consultation documentation.  

 
10.5 An employee who unreasonably refuses an offer of suitable alternative 

employment will lose any entitlement to redundancy pay.  Whether the 
refusal is reasonable or not will depend upon the circumstances of the 
proposal and the decision will be decided by the Head of Service or manager 
leading the restructure. 

 
10.6 Employees have a separate legal entitlement to be offered any suitable 

alternative work that is available if they are made redundant while on 
maternity leave.  HR advice should be sought in this situation. 

 
 

Page 73 of 82



11.0 Redeployee Status and Salary Protection 
 
11.1 Employees will receive redeployee status when they are at risk of 

redundancy.  Redeployees are expected to actively/regularly monitor 
internal/external vacancies advertised on www.publicsectorjobseast.co.uk 
and apply for any suitable alternative roles.  Employees who cannot access 
the internet should contact their Line Manager so that alternative 
arrangements can be made to communicate details of current vacancies. 

 
11.2 Redeployees should apply for any role that is a suitable alternative role using 

the standard online application form by the deadline advertised – there is a 
box on the application form where a candidate can specify that he/she has 
redeployee status. 

 
11.3 Applications from redeployees will be considered and shortlisted alongside 

all other applications (i.e. those from internal or external applicants). 
 
11.4 Candidates who are at risk of redundancy and have “redeployee” status will 

be offered an interview if they demonstrate that they meet the majority of the 
essential criteria for the role in their application form.  The selection process 
will further assess the essential criteria, and redeployees will only be turned 
down for the job if after the selection process there is evidence to suggest 
that they do not meet the essential criteria, or if there is a more suitable 
redeployee. 

 
It is proposed that the selection procedure will be based on the following:  

 
 the contents of the abbreviated application form 
 employees will be given the opportunity to demonstrate their suitability 

for the role at interview and  / or during assessment tests 
 knowledge, skills and capability assessed by both the application form 

and an interview  
 
11.5 Employees redeployed will be granted salary protection for a period of 6 

months at full pay followed by a further 6 months at half pay, when appointed 
to a role which carries a lower level of grade of one grade below the 
employees substantive post. 

 
11.6 After 12 months the protection will cease and the employee will be paid the 

salary appropriate to the new role. 
 
11.7 Where an employee is in an acting up role, for the purposes of consultation 

they will be treated as if they are in their substantive post. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74 of 82

http://www.publicsectorjobseast.co.uk/


12.0 Trial Period 
 
12.1 Where an alternative role is offered either through the employee applying for 

the role as a redeployee, or by the manager identifying and offering a 
suitable alternative role to an employee in the new structure, it may be 
subject, in the first instance, to a trial period of four weeks.  The right to end 
the trial and become redundant will not necessarily be lost during this period. 

 
12.2 If either party believes the role to be unsuitable prior to or during the trial 

period the following will apply: 
 

 where HDC and the employee agree that the role is unsuitable the 
employee will be considered redundant.  A redundancy payment will be 
calculated to the new termination date together with any outstanding 
holiday payment; 

 where HDC believes the role is suitable but the employee disagrees 
then redundancy will not apply. The employee will be deemed 
responsible for terminating their contract; 

 where, in liaison with the Director, Head of Service, Manager and HR, 
the new Manager believes the role is not suitable notice will be given.  
The employee will then be redundant and will receive redundancy pay 
calculated to the new termination date together with any outstanding 
holiday payment; and 

 where an employee does not agree a role is suitable, or unsuitable as 
outlined above, the right to appeal under the grievance procedure 
remains. 

 
12.3 In exceptional circumstances the 4 week trial period may need to be 

extended at the decision (or discretion) of the line manager.  Reasons for 
this may include additional time needed for training. 

13.0 Selection for Redundancy 
 
13.1 Where job roles change HDC will apply the ‘80/20 rule.’  Minor or 

insignificant changes (less than 20%) to a job role mean that the job role is 
substantially the same.  Significant changes (more than 20%) to a job role 
mean that the job role has substantially changed so that the original job role 
disappears (i.e. is redundant) and a new different job role is created. 

 
13.2 Where a service is restructured the service manager will first design the new 

structure, identifying the types of posts that are required.  Any roles in the 
current structure that have changed by less than 20% will not be redundant – 
the current post holders will be assimilated into the new roles. 

 
13.3 If an employee’s post has changed by more than 20% they will be put at risk 

of redundancy and given redeployee status.  Employees who do not secure 
a post in the new structure will be issued notice of redundancy. 

Page 75 of 82



13.4 When a job role remains unchanged in the proposed new structure but fewer 
roles are needed, a selection for redundancy exercise will need to take 
place. The criteria used in selecting employees for redundancy will depend 
on the existing circumstances and the particular needs of the organisation at 
the time.  However, every effort will be made to construct a fair and robust 
set of criteria following appropriate consultations. 

13.5 Individual employees who are provisionally selected for redundancy 
following the application of the criteria will be informed of the fact and invited 
to a meeting.  They will be entitled to be accompanied at that meeting.  
During the meeting, they will be given an opportunity to make 
representations and query the application of the criteria and whether this 
results in unfairness to them. 

 
13.6 When considering an employee’s attendance record as part of the selection 

criteria, care needs to be taken to ensure that the reasons for the non-
attendance are fully understood to ensure equitable treatment. 

 
13.7 HDC will not use any selection criteria that potentially discriminates on any 

grounds, e.g. age, disability, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, race, 
religion/belief, gender or marital status.  Employees should not be selected 
for redundancy because they are pregnant or on maternity leave. 

 
13.8 In each redundancy situation managers will decide what selection criteria are 

relevant and what weighting should be given to each criterion.  Managers 
should seek advice on selection criteria and weighting from HR. 

 
13.9 HDC will consult on the proposed selection criteria as part of the consultation 

process. 
 
13.10 A manager’s assessment of the performance and capability of individuals 

relative to each other is a legitimate method of selection.  Selection 
decisions must be supported by appropriate and sufficient evidence.  Prior 
disciplinary warnings, written evidence of work performance issues or other 
clear evidence of a failure to meet acceptable/defined standards of 
performance or conduct may be considered when scoring against selection 
criteria.  The period of time that is considered to undertake scoring should be 
long enough to be representative of employees performance and attendance 
(e.g. 6 months, 12 months).  The same time period should as far as possible 
be considered for all employees - guidance should be sought from HR when 
scoring employees who have not been working for the length of time that is 
being considered e.g. for new starters or women on maternity leave. 

 
13.11 A selection matrix will be used to assign a score to each employee against 

each criterion.  Scores will be totalled to give each employee being 
considered for redundancy a final score.  Employees with the lowest score(s) 
will be those selected for redundancy.   Should employees have a matching 
score, a selection interview may be used to determine who should be 
selected for redundancy. 

 

Page 76 of 82



14.0 Voluntary Redundancy 
 
14.1 HDC may, on occasion, seek volunteers for redundancy.  Managers, as part 

of the planning stage of a restructure or programme of redundancies, will 
define which job roles will be invited to apply for voluntary redundancy (VR).  
The invitation may be limited to all employees currently undertaking a 
particular role within the team/service that is being restructured.  Invitations 
for voluntary redundancy will be made at the beginning of the consultation 
period and the option will be discussed during individual consultation 
meetings – the consultation document will specify the group of employees 
that will be invited to apply for VR and the deadline for applications. 

 
14.2 HDC does not offer an enhanced redundancy pay package to those 

volunteering for redundancy – entitlement to redundancy pay and release of 
pension benefits is calculated in accordance with statutory weeks pay. 

 
14.3 Whilst applications for voluntary redundancy are being invited and 

considered the restructure process will continue in parallel as scheduled e.g. 
if an employee was subject to selection for redundancy this will continue. 

 
14.4 Employees wishing to apply for VR must complete the VR application form 

and return it to their Head of Service by the deadline specified in the 
consultation document.  Submitting a VR application form is not a guarantee 
that a VR request will be granted. 

 
14.5 Redundancy pension estimates are processed by the LGSS Pensions team 

and can be requested through your HR Team. 
 
14.6 HDC reserves the right to decline applications for voluntary redundancy.  

The Head of Service will give due consideration to all applications for VR.  
The criteria for turning down an application for VR are as follows: 
 The service needs to retain the individual’s skills and expertise (the loss 

of these skills will negatively impact on service delivery) 
 The payment of redundancy pay and associated costs does not 

represent the most effective use of the services budget 
 The individual is in a post that is not proposed to be deleted, or where 

there is no significant change in the nature of the work. 
 
14.7 The decision of the Head of Service will be reviewed and confirmed or 

overturned by the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) before the employee is 
notified of any potential outcome. 

 
14.8 In most cases, if an employee leaves by way of voluntary redundancy, the 

post will be deleted.  However, the post may be filled if this will prevent a 
compulsory redundancy elsewhere.  In this case, the Head of Service will 
submit a business case with the employees VR form to CLT outlining what 
savings will be made if the role is filled. 

 
14.9 If an application for voluntary redundancy is accepted the employee’s line 

manager will arrange to meet with the employee to explain this.  Acceptance 

Page 77 of 82



will be confirmed in writing.  HR will issue notice of termination to the 
individual and notify pensions that the voluntary redundancy needs to be 
processed. 

 
14.10 Once an employee has been issued notice of termination he/she does not 

have a right to retract the application for voluntary redundancy, nor does 
he/she have a right of appeal against the dismissal. 

 
14.11 Employees who have been accepted for voluntary redundancy will not be 

eligible for redeployee status and will not be considered for redeployment to 
roles that are deemed suitable alternative employment. 

 
14.12 If an application for voluntary redundancy is not accepted the employee’s 

line manager will arrange to discuss this with the employee.  The manager 
should explain the reason for turning down the VR application.  The manager 
will confirm the decision in writing.  There is no right of appeal. 

 
14.13 HDC will not usually re-employ or re-engage a person who has been made 

voluntarily redundant into a similar role any time in the future. In exceptional 
circumstances re-engagement to a significantly different role with different 
responsibilities may be possible.  HR advice should be sought in this 
situation as CLT approval will be required. 

 
15.0 Redundancy Pay 
 
15.1 Redundancy pay is paid to employees who are dismissed by reason of 

redundancy in line with statutory redundancy payment obligations to 
employees with two or more years of continuous local government service.  
The weekly pay is not capped in any redundancy calculations and 20 years 
continuous service is the maximum number of years used to calculate 
redundancy payments. To summarise;  

 
0.5  week’s pay for every year of service at age 22 

1  week’s pay for every year of service at age 23-40 

1.5  week’s pay for every year of service at age 41 and above 
 
 Please see chart on HR Intranet page that shows the number of weeks 

entitlement in line with age and number of years’ service. 
 
15.2 Previous continuous service with organisations covered by the Redundancy 

Payments Modifications Order will also be used to calculate redundancy 
payments. If you are considering working for another local authority or 
organisation which is covered by the Local Government Modification Order 
you should seek advice from the HR Team about whether this would affect 
your entitlement to a redundancy payment.  Further information relating to 
the Modification Order and organisations covered by the Order is available 
on the Local Government Association website.  You will not be eligible for a 
redundancy payment if: 

Page 78 of 82



 
 Before the termination of your employment, you receive from the Council 

or an Associated Employer, who is listed on the Modification Order (1999) an 
offer of employment to commence within four weeks of the termination date of 
your employment with Huntingdonshire District Council and for the avoidance 
of doubt continuity of employment will be preserved in the new job. 

 You decline or terminate a reasonable offer of suitable alternative 
employment. 

 
15.3  Pensionable employees aged 55 or over with at least 3 months’ continuous 

service, who are dismissed by reason of redundancy will receive immediate 
payment of Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) benefits (lump sum 
and annual pension). 

 
15.4 Employees on a variable hours contract and therefore no mutual obligation 

established regarding offering or accepting of work, will have entitlement 
calculated on an individual basis over a continuous twelve-week period and 
in line with the number of hours worked from the day notice is issued. 

 
15.5 In certain circumstances a lump sum payment in lieu of statutory or 

contractual notice (whichever is the longer) may be allowed where the whole 
or part period of notice is not given.  However, the employee will, where 
possible, be required to serve his or her statutory or contractual period of 
notice. 

 
15.6 While employees with less than two years local government service will not 

be entitled to redundancy payment all employees affected by redundancy 
will be included in the ‘at risk’ or ‘under notice’ of redundancy and will be 
offered redeployee status regardless of length of service. 

 
15.7 The payments referred to in this section may be subject to variation in the 

future arising from changes to statute, regulations or Council policy. 
 
16.0 Notice Period 
 
16.1 An employee will be expected to work his/her notice.  Wherever possible, 

and in line with service needs, employees should take all outstanding annual 
leave during their notice period.  Pay in lieu of notice may be appropriate 
where a service requires an individual to leave prior to the end of his/her 
contractual notice period but this will be granted in exceptional 
circumstances only. 

 
16.2 If an employee requests to leave before the end of the notice period he/she 

should discuss this with his/her line manager to see if this request can be 
accommodated.  If the service can accommodate this request the employee 
will waive the right to the remainder of the notice period and notice pay. 

 
16.3 The notice period will be the longer of the following: 
 

Page 79 of 82



 the notice period stated in an employee’s contract of employment; or 
 one week’s notice for each year of continuous employment, in line with 

statutory provisions (if the employee’s period of continuous service is 
two years or more) to a maximum of 12 weeks. 

16.4 In accordance with existing policies any existing loans will be repayable on 
termination of employment and may be deducted from any final payment. 

 
16.5 Notice will also be given to an employee who is coming to the end of a fixed 

term or temporary contract to confirm there is no decision to extend the 
current contract. 

 
16.6 If the fixed term or temporary contract ends as a result of redundancy then 

the individual will be entitled, subject to meeting statutory eligibility criteria, to 
receive redundancy compensation and redeployee status. 

 
 
17.0 Support for Employees Under Notice of Redundancy 
 
17.1 Employees will be entitled, during their notice period, to a reasonable 

amount of paid time off during working hours for the purposes of: 
 

 looking for new employment 
 attending interviews 
 making arrangements for future training for future employment; and 
 where appropriate, attending outplacement services 

17.2 Any such request should receive prior approval from the employee’s line 
manager. 

 
17.3 When requested and where practical and appropriate HDC may also offer 

additional support for employees at risk or under notice of redundancy. 
Requests for additional support should be directed to the Manager leading 
the redundancy consultation. 

 
18.0 Redundancy Appeals 
 
18.1 A decision to close a service or reduce head count is a business decision 

that cannot be overturned by an employee appeal against dismissal.  An 
employee cannot challenge the business case as part of an appeal – this 
must be done at the consultation stage. 

 
18.2 Appeal against redundancy selection.  An employee who has been issued 

with notice following a selection criteria exercise can appeal against this 
decision in line with the Appeals against Dismissal Policy. 

 
18.3 Failure to consult.  An employee can appeal a redundancy dismissal on the 

basis that there has been a failure to consult.  If the appeal is upheld HDC 
must undertake the consultation required with all affected employees. 

Page 80 of 82



 
18.4 Failure to offer help to find suitable alternative employment.  An 

employee can appeal a redundancy dismissal on the basis that HDC has 
failed to offer help to find suitable alternative employment and where they 
can demonstrate they have requested support.  If the appeal is upheld an 
employees notice period will be extended by 1 month to allow more time to 
apply for roles with redeployee status. 

 
There are no other grounds on which an employee can appeal a redundancy 

dismissal. 
 

19.0 Glossary of Terms 
 
Further definition of some of the terms used in the policy is provided below. 

 
19.1 At risk of redundancy 
An employee is placed at risk of redundancy when it has been proposed in a 

consultation document that their current post is either being deleted or has 
changed by more than 20%.  Employees will receive notification of being 
placed at risk of redundancy and will gain redeployee status.  At this stage, 
the changes to posts are proposals and these proposals may change during 
the period of consultation. 

 
19.2 Redeployee Status 
An employee will receive redeployee status when he/she is: - at risk or under 

notice of redundancy - being redeployed due to a disability - being 
redeployed as part of a statutory flexible working request. 

 
An employee will receive redeployee status for jobs that are: - on the same grade 

(or one grade lower) and - where the job has similar duties/responsibilities - 
where the employee meets all of the essential criteria for the role following a 
full assessment. 

Redeployee status does not apply to promotional posts. 
 

19.3 Under Notice of Redundancy 
An employee who is under notice of redundancy will have been issued with their 

notice letter.  At this stage, full consultation will have taken place and the 
final structure and impact on posts and employees will have been 
communicated.  The notice letter will outline the employees contractual 
notice period as well as the support offered to them during this time.  
Employees continue to receive redeployee status for the duration of their 
notice period. 

 
19.4 Notice Period 
In a redundancy situation, the notice period is the amount of time between an 

employee being issued with notice of redundancy, to their last date of 
employment with HDC.  The amount of notice that an employee is given 
depends upon their contract and length of service, and this will be clearly 
outlined in the notice letter. 

 

Page 81 of 82



19.5 Redundancy Pay 
This is the payment that an employee receives if they leave HDC by way of 

redundancy.  The amount of redundancy pay that an employee is entitled to 
is determined by their contractual hours, age, salary and length of service.  A 
ready reckoner that outlines the redundancy pay calculation is available on 
the intranet and employees who are issued with notice of redundancy will 
receive a redundancy estimate from the HR Team. 

 
19.6 Suitable Alternative Employment 
Suitable alternative employment is work offered to an employee who has 

redeployee status and, if accepted by the employee, will mitigate the 
redundancy.  In order to be suitable alternative work, a number of factors 
need to be considered and will vary on a case by case basis, so what is 
suitable alternative employment for one employee is not always suitable for 
others.  Further information is outlined in section 10 above. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 82 of 82


	Agenda
	Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and Non-Registerable Interests.
	Filming, Photography and Recording (including Live Streaming) at Council Meetings

	1 MINUTES
	3 WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT - QUARTER TWO 2023-24
	1.0	Employee Profile
	1.1	Headcount and FTE
	1.2	Workforce by Contract Type
	1.3	Paybill
	1.4	High earners
	1.5	Leavers
	1.6	Turnover
	1.7	Recruitment Metrics
	1.8	Recruitment Challenges/Successes

	1.9	Employee Engagement
	1.10	Time off for Trade Union Duties
	2.0	Sickness Absence
	2.1	Trend of Working Days Lost Across HDC
	2.2	Trend of Working Days Lost Across HDC by Quarter
	2.3	Reasons For Sickness Absence
	2.4	Sickness Absence Breakdown
	2.5	Sickness Absence Reporting by Service

	3.0	HR Caseload
	3.1	Breakdown of HR cases by Type

	4.0	Equalities Data
	4.1	Workforce by Age and Grade
	4.2	Workforce by grade and length of Service
	4.3	Workforce by Gender
	4.4	Employees by Grade and Gender
	4.5	Workforce by Ethnicity
	4.6	Disability Data

	5.0	Accident / Incident Reports
	5.1	Operations Services
	5.2	Office based premises
	5.3	One Leisure and One Leisure Active Lifestyles
	6.0	Equality Actions 2023 – Summary On a Page


	5 HR POLICY UPDATE
	2.1	PURPOSE of the report
	2.2	WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND
	2.3	KEY IMPACTS / RISKS
	2.4	WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
	2.5	LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND/OR CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	2.6	CONSULTATION
	2.7	REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	2.8	LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
		Policy Statement
		Scope
		Principles
		Responsibilities
	4.1	Managers must
	1.2	Employees must

		Informal disciplinary procedure
	1.3	Cases of minor misconduct should be dealt with informally.  A line manager should discuss the issue informally with the employee as it arises either in a supervision session or a separate discussion.  This is part of the normal day-to-day management and does not form part of the formal disciplinary procedure.
	The manager needs to set out the concerns, outline how the expected standards are not being met, and remind the employee of the standard of conduct required.  The manager should explain that if a satisfactory explanation is not evident the issue is likely to be considered under the formal disciplinary procedure.
	1.4	Written management instructions

		Formal disciplinary procedure
		Suspension
		Investigation
	The investigation will be confined to establishing the facts of the case with the employee concerned and other persons as felt appropriate.  The purpose of the investigations is to gather information to help substantiate those facts and ultimately to determine whether there are sufficient grounds to hold a disciplinary hearing.
	8.1	Investigation process
	8.2	Outcome of investigation

		Right to be accompanied
		Prior to the disciplinary hearing
		Disciplinary hearing
	1.5	Process: The disciplinary hearing will be conducted by an authorised manager who has not played any part in the investigation.  The chair will be supported by a member of the HR team.
	1.6	Witnesses: Witnesses may be employees or non-employees.  In exceptional circumstances, with the prior agreement of the chair, a witness may be accompanied by an independent person of his/her choice who will provide moral support only.  An employee is responsible for arranging his/her own witnesses and meeting any associated costs
	1.7	New evidence: If new evidence (written information and/or witnesses) is introduced at the disciplinary hearing the reasons why the details were not submitted in advance of the hearing must be explained.  If new evidence is presented, the chair conducting the hearing will take a view on whether to allow it and an adjournment may be necessary to allow time for consideration and/or further investigation.

		Decision
		Disciplinary action
	1.9	There are three levels of disciplinary action.  The level of disciplinary action issued will depend on the seriousness of the misconduct and whether the employee is subject to a current warning for misconduct.
	1.10	First written warning
	1.11	Final written warning
	1.12	Dismissal
	1.13	Other action

		Time limits for warnings
		Appeals
		Special circumstances
		Consideration of expired disciplinary warnings
		Links to other procedures
	1.1	Work performance: It is sometimes difficult to distinguish between misconduct and work performance issues.  Cases of misconduct are dealt with under the disciplinary procedure, and cases of genuine lack of capability should be dealt with under the Managing Employee Performance Policy.  If it is not clear whether an issue is one of conduct or capability, the investigation process should establish this.  Managers may also wish to discuss this with a member of the HR team.
	1.2	Ill health: The disciplinary procedure and sickness absence policies can run in parallel i.e., one does not take precedence over the other.  Advice should be sought from the HR Team in these situations.

		Records
		Advice and Support
	Version 1.2
	Short-Term and Intermittent absence - definition
	Long term absence - definition
	Triggers
	Action Stage One
	Action Stage Two
	Action Stage Three




